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VINODCHANDRA R. SHAH & CO, PARTNERS
Chartered Accountants UDA? “‘ EI"AH FCA

NAYANTIKA D. SHAH rFc.a

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Tao the Members of Campbell Properties & Hospitality Services Limited

Report on the audit of Financial Statemenits

Opinion

We have andited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Campbell Properties &
Hospitality Services _imited | ‘the Company”). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 313
March, 2025, the St ement « ¥ Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income)
and the Cash Flow Statemest for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Herein after referred to as “Ind AS

Fimancial Statemenis™)

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and aceording 1o the explanation given to
us, tie afbresaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Compeniss Acst, 2013 in the manner 5o required and give a trus and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally secepted in India, of the staie of affairs
of the Company as at March 31%, 2025 and ite profit, changes in cquity and itz cash flows
for the year ended as : n that d ite.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in aecordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified undes
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responzibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
seciion of our report. We are indepondent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued By the Instituie of Chartered Accousnts of Todia wopether with the ethien]

requirements that are relevant to our audii of the Ind AS ficancial statcments under the
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provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Fthics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial siatements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the sudit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in thiz regard.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give & true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, (changes in equity)[v] and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with[vi] the accounting principles penerally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of rthe Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting (rauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and predent; and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial eontrols, that were

-
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operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records
televant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a truc and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
1o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to

do so0.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporling process.

The Board is also responsible for overseeing any amendments in Company's Act hes been
incorporated or not.

Aunditor's Respousibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonakle assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror, and 1o issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
matcrial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism during the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of muterial misstatement of the financial steiements,
whether due 1o fraud or error, desizn and perform audit procedures to those risks, and
obtain andit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our
opinien. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, risrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate intermnal controls systems in place and the

operative effectiveness of such controls

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the ressonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report o the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion,
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continie as 8 going concern.

e [Ewvaluate the overall presentation, strueture and content of the financial statements.
mncluding  the dsclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions ard events in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the
planncd scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in ihe audit of the financial statements of the currem
period and are therefore the key audit manters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s

report unless law or regulation precludss public disclosure about the matter or when, in
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cxtremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in

our report because the adverse consequences of dong so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and 'Regujﬂturf- Requirements |

1. As required by the Companies {(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by
the Central Govemment of [ndia in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(e)

(d)

(e}

(f)

(&)
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those hooks;

the Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Mow
statement dealt with by this Repont are in agreement with the books of
account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March,2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as 2
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

with respect o the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectivencss of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B, and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

EﬂCEﬂldﬂ.ﬂCE with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

T
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In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, there is no remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during
the year under the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(k) In our opinion and to the best of owr information and according to the
explanations given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014: -

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements
(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on anv material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise
{iii} There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year
under repori to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund. The question of delay in  transferring such sums does not arise,
{iv)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes 1o the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any gpuirantes, sccurity or the like on behall of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.
{v} The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, divectly or indirectly,

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
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by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™ or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(vi) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriates

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 10

believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) contain anwv

material mis-statement,

(vi1jThe company has not declared or paid any dividend during the vear in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013

{viii) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used  An accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a featurs of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for ali relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the
audif trail has been preserved hy the company as per the statutory

sequirements for record retenfion.

For Vinodchandra R Shah & o,
Chartered Accountanis
FRN: 115394W pm——

Uday V. Shah Aok
Partner N o et
M No: 035626 .
Date: 11042025

Place: Mumbai
UDN: 25035626 BMIGNY 4851
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“ANNEXURE A™ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF CAMPBELL

PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 3157 MARCH 2025

In respect of Property, plant and equipment,

(a) (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment
{B). The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of

intangibles assets,

(b). Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by Management in
accordance with a planned program of verifying them once in three years which, in
our opinion. is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature

of assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c). The Company does not own any Immovable property (other than properties where
the Company is the Jessee and the lease apreements are duly executed in favour of

the lessee] hence reporting vnder clause 1{c} of the order is not applicable.

(d). The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets during the year ended 31 March, 2025. Accordingly, the reguirement to
report on clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{e). Based on the informaticn and explanations given to us, there are no procesdings
mitizted or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,
Accordingly, the requirement to reporl on clause 3(iKe) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(a).

(b).

LI

I'V.

V1L

vIL

a)

In respect of Inventory,

As the company 1s engaged in the business of letting of property on lease and rendering
hospitality services, there is no inventory in hand at any point of time, hence reporting
under clanse (iij}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explanation given to us, at any point of time of the year,
Company has not availed any working capital facility from any banks or financial
institutions in excess of Rs. 5 crores and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the
order is not applicable,

The Company has not made any investment or provided any guarantee or security, and
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to

companies, firms, Limited Liability Parinerships or any other parties during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guaraniees or
securities to the parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, reporting under clause iii of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be

deposits. Henes, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenancs of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the

Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

In respect of Statutory Dues,

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods end Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all

cases during the vear.
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There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employecs’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

There are no disputed tax liabiliies between the company and any of the forums,
hence reporting under clause vii(b) of the order is not applicable,

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Tncome Tax Act,
1961 {43 of 1961) during the year.

In respect of Borrowings,

a) In our opinion, the Company has not taken any type loans or other borrowings,
hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) is not applicable.

b} Acconding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority or
any other lender. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) is not applicable,

c) In our opinion, the Company has not taken any type loans or other borrowings,

hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) is not applicable.

d) In our opinion, the Company has not taken any type loans or other borrowings,
hence reporting under clause 3(ix)d) is not applicable.

g) The Company does not hold any investment, subsidiary, joint venture {as defined

under the Companies Act, 2013), hence reporting under clause 3ix)e) is not
applicable.

In respect of securities,
The Company has not issued any of its securities {including debt instruments) during
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

-
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b)

XI.

b)

c)

XII.

XIIL

ATV,

a)

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

In respect of Fraod,

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Governmant, during the
year and upto the date of this report

As presented tc us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii} of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opirion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the
details of related party transactions have bzen disclosed in the financial statements ete.
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In respect of Int2rmal Aulitor,

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate

with the size and the nature of its business

)

Internal Audit is not applicable 1o company as per Companies, 2013, hence

reporting  under clause xiv(b) is not applicable.

XV.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.
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a)

b)

d}

XVIL

AVIIL

XTIX.

In respect of Section 45-1A,

In respect of Scction 45-1A a) The Company is not reguired 10 be registered under
section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause
{xvi){a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not engaged in Non- Banking Finance Activities, hence, reporting
under clause (xvi}) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India hence clause (xvi) (¢) of the Order is not
applicable

The Group has five CICs which are part of the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)

s 5P Finance Private Limited

e 5C Finance and [nvestments Private Limited
» Hermes Commerce Private Limited

o Renaissance Commerce Private Limited

* Shapaorji Pallonji Energy Private Limited (formerly known as Shapoorji
Pallonji Ol ard Gas Private Limited)

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
Year,

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of

financial assets and pavment of financial Habilities, other information accompanying
the financial statenients and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
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plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit repont indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

The Company is not required to comply with provision of Sec 135 of Companics Act.
2013, hence reporting under clause xx is not applicable.

The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause
has been incleded in this report.

For ¥Vinodchandra B Shah & Co.
Chartered Aceountsats
FRMN: 115394W

1 S ey
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Uday V. Shah 3 el
Partner R I

M No: 035626 T
Date: 110472025

Place: Mumbai

LUDIN:- 25035626 BMIGNY 4851
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“ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

the Intern i ial Controls under i} of Sub-section 3 section

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Campbell
Properties & Hospitalit Scrvices Limited (“the Company™ as of March 31, 2025 in
conjunction with our awlit of the Ind-AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for esiablishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the cssential components of internal control stated in “the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India™ These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as requited under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility

(hur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial eontrols,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the

Cndance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
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audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal finaneial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness
Cur audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness cxists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control bused on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financis] control over financial reporting is a process designed o
provide reasonable issurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted nccounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, sccuralely and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with anthorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
cvaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may beccome
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vinodchandra R Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 115394W

- - -
ok H .
L\_.,\_}-...L-p.k iy iy

Uday V. Shah s Sl

JO
Partner i :_.-_;_';_;-';'*
Membership Number: 035626 ——
Place: Mumbai,
Date: 11/04/2025

UDIN: 25035626 BMIG NY 4851
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET A5 AT 315T MARCH, 2025
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I b @ aur repon @itached

Far Minodchandrs B, Shah & Ca,. -~ T, SLIDHIA WAKLIRE
Marféred Accowmtante <00 [T, 20 -4
PR LISFW [y =
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Liday V. Shah = i
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2025

Yesr ended T gaged
Notw Yist March, 2025 3Jst Movch, J02d
Particulars Ne, ¥ in Thosisands § in Thousands
| Revenue from oparatioes e 113175 1.305.50
Il Dbk income 15 EA.13 G845
W Tokad Incoswse (1 + §] 128588 1,377.86
1% Ewpeepepes:
Fnance cost L] 154 Ay
Diepredation and amortisation ssperms 17 54,51 54.5]
Cther experaes il L4165 1, MR 65
Total expansas 16775 L3iE 8
¥ Profit f floss| before exceptional fheme and tax (il - v} HZL14 672
Wi Esteptional liems -
VB Profi / (Loss) before tes W + 1) BZL14 602
Vil Taax empense f {oredi):
Current kas 1% F13 i} F70a
IFcame Tax Expenses jor aarfiar paam 19 [1E3E) 242
[zferred tar p L] D45 {4.28)
DG 3515
1% Prafitd|Lens] for the pedod (V11 - v 2098 [T
£ Other Comprehensha Incomase
Total Oifsar (amjirebeamive Imcome
Al Tetal Cemprahanyive income for the perod [1X + ¥ 11.98 7158
Ml Earning par aquity share @
Baic pred dilted camings per aquily shire r 1.78 Fooar
Sub aeenmpanying notes borming pant of the Bisiacil statements 1ta 25
In terms of our report agtachad y
Far Winodchendra K. Shah & Co, SLIDHIR WAKLIKE
Chovtered Accounrants L
FEN- 1E53549W L - |
i - fok N MIRMAL L8GAWAT Directoni
i I'_' e il
Wday V. Shah 2 el M,
Partrier Y Sl BLIFA KHANNA =
Membarship No2 035626 0. Qg
T
] T Tl

Mumbai, 216k April, 2025
UDIM' 25035824 EMTIGNY4Ha5)

Moy, 1ith April 2025

Page 19 of 155




CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

Year ended Yeor endog
115t March, 2025 A5t Maech, 2034
T in Thausands T in Thausamds
Cash fiows from aperating activities
Frafit [ {Loss) befpre tax 222 .14 5702
Adjustments for -
Finarce costs recognised in profit or loss 154 LFF
Depretiation and amortisation of nan-gunent susety .51 54,51
Intaresil Fncame (67000 {67 40
49.595) |12
Operating profit / {loss] bofore working capitad chargss B12.18 61,96
Mowements in working capitsl:
Decreaze [Mincreasa) in trade recetvabies snd other recelvabiss 1 e T 334,209
[Increasel/decrease in ather assets (123 ]
Incraase [ |deaeasa) in trade payabies and cther payahles 154.03 3705
Incraass | {dscreass| in pther Habi#ties 11,E5 e
45719 {299, 73
Cash generated fram | (used Inj oparations L2038 {FR7 N3
Incanme tanes paid et of refunds) 211560 {¥1 7
(3} Mateash generated from / [used in] cperating activities L0E7.AD (363,57
Caszh flows fram nvesting acthétaes;
Inshast recsiaed Er.01 7. 40
il Met cash genorated from / jused in) nvesting actsties G701 74D
Cash flews from financng actiities:
Payment af Leass Liabilitks [ 5000 [l ]
[<i Netcash gererated from / [wsed in) financing activities (60.00) fEQOT
[d} metincroase | [decrease] in cash ard cash equivalants [a+ b= o) 1,074.82 (2e2ar
le] Cashand cash equivalents 2x at the commencement of the year 1.454.41 I 7658
I} Cazh amd cagh equivalems a5 st the end of the year 2,529.73 145847
mmmvlq_m:ai forming part of the Financlal stataments 1to 25
I terms of owr repart attsched B
For Winodchandra B, Shah & £a, e SUDHIR WaKLURE
Chartermd Accountmars 0
FRN- 115394 e R : &
[ O HIAMAL JAGAWAT Directors
| 'l., i P h. ..I LN i sl
i 5. i
Uday ¥, Shah ) oyl @pr{f),/
Fartner o Tl LA KHANMA, i

Membership No.: DISEZE Soamoas

LDIN Z2sprss2e BMTGMNvLES)
fluvmba, 11th Apeil, 3025

Mumbai, I1th Aani, 27025
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 313t March, 2025

? in Fhowsanas
a. Equity share capltal Moued Shares Amount
Balance as at ¥1st March, 2023 &87.50 4, 575,00
Changes in nguity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 3151 March, 2024 28750 4,875.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balanoe a3 ot 3158 March, 2025 A87.50 A BTE.O0
B. Dither Equity
¥ iy Thoussnags
Reseryis and surpbus
Semurities premium
TESErys Hetaimed parnings Tatal
Balance as at 315t March, 2023 13,125.00 1,301,549 14,875.54
Profit far the year 31.E8 3188
Liahed comprehensive income far tho year, nigt of )
income tax .
Balanca as ak 315t March, 2024 13,135.00 1,333.82 14,858.47
Prodit for fhe year - 62198 2198
Dther comprebongive incame for the year, ret of
ImEame tax E £ .
Balamis a5 at Tist March, 2035 13,1325.0: 1,955.41 15.0&0.40
508 actampanying notes Iun'mlrli part of the financial statements
in terrms of Our repart attached ]
Fer Vinodchandra R, Shah & Cao. SUDHIR WAKLUIRE
Chartered Accountants .-""',._T:"x
FRM- 115394 ot L o

i, i g

: | iy NIRMAL JAGAWAT " [ aivectors
e ! nal 1N
i e ]
Uday V. Shah it }_\_gr—'f)_,_
Partner e oW RUPA KHANNS @ i

Memberchip Mo, 0315626 "'-'-______- ' _'__ ‘_...,-5"’
UDIN! 2§82 BMLBNY4g ) 4
Mambai, 11th April, 2025 Murmbai, 11th Apeil, 2025
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 - Continued

3. Property, plant and equipment
¥ in Thousandgs
As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Cost or Deemed cost

Balance at 1st April, 2024 f 1st April, 2023 B66.36 65,36
Additions = .
Disposal = .
Balance at 31st Mar., 2025 / 31st Mar., 2024 66.36 66,36

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at 1st April, 2024 / 1st April, 2023 60.70 5558
Depreciation expense 2.12 212
Balance at 31st Mar., 2025 / 31st Mar., 2024 62.82 60,70

|Carrying Amount

Balance at 1st April, 2024 / 1st April, 2023 5.66 7.7e
Addition

Disposal . =
Depreciation expense 2.12 a: 12
Balance at 31st Mar., 2025 / 315t Mar., 2024 154 5.66

r ..-I

b Bt
Aoy wely
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 15T MARCH, 2025 - Continwed

4. Trade receivables

4A.  Trade receivables- Currant

T in Thousamds
As ol As it
Particulars 315t March, 2025  Tis March, 2024
Trade recelvabias
4]  Unsecured, consldered good 152572 ALERE
b}  Doubrial = 18,41
Allowance for doubitisl debis - 18.41
Total 15352 A58
Trade receivables- Agsing schadyls As at As ar
Range of O/s periced 31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024
Undisputod Trade recevakb|es;
Unbilled - -
Hat Oug - -
Less than E months 15163 d56. 8
&months - 1 yoar - -
1-3 years -
4-3 yeirs £ :
= I yaars = 1841
Total 15252 dF52T
Less: Prosision made - 1§41
152.52 d56.86
5. Other financial assets
5A.  Other financial assets - Non current
¥ in Thousands
s gt Ax it
Particulars 31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
&) Security deposits
- Unserured, considered good li'.!uil:ld]i 1752000
Total 17, 520,000 17 52000
Sk T,
P s
NE: )
: Lspat )
i 'l -I'.: I':; :I.r:
| ~ _.‘;_.-
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED A15T MARCH, 2025 - Continuad

E. BA.  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statemant of cash fows, cash and cach equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, nat of
daitstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equiviatants at the and of the raporting perod as shawn in the statement of
cash flows can be reconciled to the related fems in tha balance shesf s follows:

&40 Thousangs
As at Asof
Particulars 31st March, J025 31 March, 2024
Balances with Banks
Al  in current aceourts 152923 454.41
B] Deposits accounts {with original maturity upto 3 months) - -
153923 454.4]
6B,  Bank balances
al I deposit sceounts with ariginal miatusity of more than 3 manths but less
than 17 months 100000 100000
1, D30 M I 000,00
7. Dther gssets
T8,  Other assets - Current
TN Thosangs
As at At
3 202 5t Mz
Particulsrs 13t March, 2025 31 roty, 2Rd
a]  Advances for supply of goods and serdces
- Unsacured, considerad good -
= Doubithul - [
Less @ Allawance for doubtful advances - .49
b Balances with statutosy / governenent autharities 25.40 1257
Totai 2540 1257
T
i '] :'.'."
. s g
S mLminal 1l
= I
th DL 7 -'_\'._-
s ]
Ry el ol
I-.';'.::; ___:';:a-
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 5157 MARCH, 2025 - Continund

I Eguilty Share Capital

F i Thousands
A Asar
P tbeislefa 3140 March, 7035 §2er Masch, N2S
Bishsarised Share capits -
500,000 Tully paid ooty shams of T 10 earh 5, L0 5, (ENLNT
i
Iszaid and subscribsed capital comprives:
4 87 500 tally paid enuity shores of T 50 asch
£ 87500 A4 BT
487500 o 57500
e —
& 1 Fully paid equity shares
Sharay Share: capital
Particulary {10 Thezusand) ¥ irs Thousands
Balance a5 3t 13 April, 1003 487,50 IR
Morenents ' =
Ealance as at 310 March, o2 750 & ATE. O
Fﬂ'.'ﬂi‘rl‘-rlh. 3 -
Balence 55 ot 3158 Manch, 1125 AAT.50 imm

Tully paid equity shores. whibsh haee a par walue oF % 19, CERTY el wirhe per shane and carry 2 rlgh 1o dhidends.

E. 2 Details od sharas held wmmhlmmy.uHMmmmm-mmmmm

Fﬂemdﬂrn

LRI Mcar
Particular 315t March, 2005 385t March, 2024
Forbey B Compacy Lmilied, the Balding company A7, 50 44750
Toual CED 750

3 Mull;ﬂﬂmmh:ﬂmmlun‘_mmm:ﬁm

A nt As af
Wsr Mtarch, 2% i1t Aoveh, 2004
Number of thares # Balding in i Humber of Bane ¥ holding in the
Particulas Fazld clads ol shares haid rlaas o b ey
Fufly paid equity searey
Forbes & Campany Limted Er5n 1541 1 JE7.50 bl
Tosul ART 50 LML 48757 308,01 |
3. Othar egudy excluding non-comroiling inbsnest
F & Thasamts
B ab As af
Particulars _Nist March, BOS 31t arch, Mi2g
a| Secwrities presium reserve
Baianie a1 begineing of the yea RE S ] 18135 00
Mivements H -
Bafance at and of the pedod 19,1500 1R125.00
b Retained earningy
Baldiicn pf baginning of ye s 133342 1,301.54
Profit aiributalile to pwners of e Company 63158 1158
Balsce: wt v Of thet parrind 1,955 40 1.333.43
Total &4 14,458 42
e e —————.—

Bate 1: The general rasieve b used from Hine e time to traniler geafits from rasaived eamings for appropriation puroea. As
the general rederen i3 oeatsd By o transier from one oomponesd & aniety 0 anathar and Is not an &em of other
rormgis v incoma, s incheded In thi peneral reseree will nar be redassiied brquently to profe or foex.

-,
P —e

AR 7
iy S
i oy
I|_ Y 4= o .I
| "_'_. [=7] :
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED J15T MARCH, 2025 - Contined

I0. Daférred tax balances

The followieg iy the anabyin ol deterned ma appntf|Habditien) prestiied in the balasrs sheat

F i Thoo=poads
Az ak Aty
Particulars 315t Mlarch, 2025  §i=t RAweck, 2000
Oefernad tax sty 31 MEs
Disfersnd tax batifnies .
[T s 1018
Current Year | 2024-35) i Thousands
Recognised in Cloging
Particiilam _Opening bilance et o losy balancs
Db rrad Race (farb s | faiamiy in relatian to:
al  Froperiy, plan and equipmens .17 H1.46) 4821
bl Espernes o o caymient bk e 4491
tf  Deduction u/s 350 - - :
Tl a) .., 1018 LR g
| Tax loaes - - :
bl Cubrs (MART Coucki] = .
Total (&) . F i .
Tatal (aad] .. T ET) [T 3,71
Entviouy Vear { 202 - 2a) P e Thaumwands
Recogekied b Chrwdng
Portirulars _I:lprml:-qu'u__;‘w: Brofit o kg Brofiivice
Drferned o [VobiBiier)eiwty In nefatisg fa:
8] Froperty, phast andigwnmanr 53] i) 527
bl Expenies plowed sn popmant dans . FEH 293
o Dedurtion w350 - . ?
Total f4)... 5972 ¥ EITET]
af Tl losses -
Bl Drfiess (AAT Crad) =
Toead (1] 7 "
Tatmd fA+0]... X 457 it |
o ?',_.". -E"’-'..
- N
ik L
i -: ",
i 'a Thr _r_l|:
1 'y
af = L ool
-
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continuad

11, Othor noa-curvent Habifiges

1A, Dther currant labalitios

F oy Thodmands
s at Az gt
Pasrticulars 3ist March, 2025 315t March, 2024
a}  Advances Fram custamers - -
a)  Slatstorny refiltance: 2IHL I1g
Teriad 2281 LI
1. Trade payabies
Trade payables - Current
Ay at Ay r
Particulars st March, 2025 315t Morch, 20024
Micre and smisll antoipises - -
Cthars 300,05 146,02
Total 300.06 a0z

The avesige cred® perlod on porchases of eerain oods i generally in range of O to 30 days, Mo intorast is charped on the trade

paryables for the first O to 30 days from the date af the meaio,

13. Tax sssets and liabalities

¥ In Thaysands
As at A5or
Particulars Fist March, 2025 27sr March, 2004

Tax gszois
Tak regeneyhis I7.ES 2509

37.85 2589
Tax Eshilities
Incams gas piyable .
Current Tan Assets {oursent portion) -
Current Tax As5els {nooecurcent porton| 37.55 2559

Page 32 of 155




(&

[InIGnon Paiapisues] Sgong 2p0at papndsig fa

N
i (P0o8 prspisuog) sajqodog apoa) pajndsia (i
] [MIgnag paispisun)) sagodog apel pandsoun ()
Z09rT : Z0'0FT [
G0'9 L - - 009t AQU - 00 F YOS Y S4PUOYIpOLL
T - 3 &'E {aBioyIay o101} anty oiay
e - 3 S8R PIT AIALY 3MAAE A0y saqi0]
LTOE . * - LI°9E SRR SO0
gz 5 - IsE e EOOT IS 000N JAURLLET 1535
(POOD paiapsuo) SHQEAS apol] papndspld f)
NLETHS Jo3q r Sy —
fOROL | Lo oy | S0 E<7 | 4034 Z-T | -syauo g g Uy 5537 Jwoy ALaog winniPog
SOUGITION] U § ™
FEDE YD ISTE Papua Jnak 2y aaf sajgadig apoa Jo __E._Wm_._u
@
o
WM (INagneg palapisual) s2|qedad apes) paandsiq (Al
¥N (pood passpisuas] s=igeked apei] pagndaig (]
Wh [IM3gqnag passpesun]) sajqeted 2pes) pasndsipun |||
S0°00% - z 90°00E i
Ll i B s a051 A 07 g YRYS Y EIpUBYIpouls
0°ET a0 T P17 FLEAMY B3iARE AlfjjIe4 Saiiny
(P00%) paudpisue) sajqeAsd apes] pasndsipur (|
JEAgLE 1.5 T sagjuogy
[210L | URyY) uoW | Jeaj £-7 [ Jesy -1 | -sywow 9 9 uy] 5537 sy Aued SERINIfLIEY
SpUESNOL] Wl §

STOT “yarewy ISTE papud Jeak 3yl soy seygqedey apes) go Bualy

PANURUE) - SZOT "HIYYIN LSTE QIONT ¥YIA IHL HOJ SINIWILYLS TVIINYNIS 0L 5310N
Q3LINIT S32IAH3S ALNYLIdSOH '8 S31143d404d T84 NYD



CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

14. Revenue from operations

¥ fn Thousands
Year ended Yeor ended
Particulars 31st March, 2025 315t March, 2024
3l Operating revenuss
i} Rent and amenities 2131, 7% 1250
] Drihers a0, 5000
Totsd 122175 1,309.50
15, Other Income
a)  Interest Income
i Thowsands
Yoar anded Fear ended
PFarticulars 31st March, 2025  31st March, 20724
1] bncoms Tax refund 112 1.0s
i} Bank deposits 67.01 67,400
Tatal 66.13 5546
16. Finance casts
¥ in Thowusands
Year ended ¥Year endod
Particulars F1st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Intérest costs ;-
I} Interest expenses on lease liabilities [Refer Note 23y 254 LEE
Totad 2.54 s
-'F_E; | l-'. ; n, N
! o -’ I
I‘::.- 4 -I.-
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued
17. Depreciation and amortisation expense

r ln Thousands
Year ended Veor eaded
Particudars 31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024
i Depreciation of property, plant and equipment pertaining to
continuing operations 212 212
)y Depreclation Right-of-use assets (Refar Note 23] 532,30 5239
Total depreciation and amon&ation periaining to oparatians 54.51 54.5]
18. & Other expenses
¥ in Thousands
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2025  31st Morch, 2024
ap Power and fuel 13203 I124.45
b)  Repalrsto:
) Bulidings 1433 1.39
i} Others 31.80 4310
5,13 R ]
cl Rates and taxes (excheding tanes on income) 14.63 13.01
dl  Heusekseping, Laundary and Supplies 1,140.53 1.000.18
el  Communication 2071 .29
f} Legad and professional charges 13.00 1800
gl Travelling and conmveyance 1.51 .
bl Provisign for deubtful trade recaivablas 1841
1j Provissan fof doubtful loans and advances . .43
13 Miscellapaous expanses e L 3.93
Sulb Tatal 1,389,193 J,-!‘_I_F’.JE
B}  ToStatutory suditors
il  Foraudit 1604 1500
[l For other services 1.50 1.50
lily  For reimbursement of expenses A.00 .00
Sub Total 21.50 21.50
==
Total 1,410.60 1,248,656
A
I.' __'I ? "_I:.:",'
T Lk
= %
E = i
=) o
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

13. Income taxes relating to continuing operations

19.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

£ ln Thowsands
Year endad ¥Yeor ended
Particulars 31st March, 2025 315 March, 2024
Current tax
In respect of the current year X12.00 EFdr
Income Tax Expensas for sardler years [12.31] 243
199,70 3042
Deferred taw
In respect of tha current year s {4.28)
I respact of the provious year - -
046 {4.25)
Total tncome tax expense recogrised in the currant year relating to
oontinuing Operations 20,16 35 15

The income tax expanss for the year can Be reconciled to the accounting prafit as foliows:

£ in Thousands

Year ended Yeor endad

Particulars 315t March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Profit before tax from continuing cperations 822.14 67.02
Income tax expanse calculated at 26% [Previous Year 26%) 213.75 17.43
Effect of Expenees not deducthia - I17.72
Effect of congesdion, deductions, others (1.2} 2
Inpome tay eapenses in respect of earlier years (12.31) .
Intome tak enpense recognisad In profit ar kass {ralating te continuing
operations) 0. 16 3515

The tax rate wsed for the 2024-25 and 2023-24 reconcillations abowe i the Corporate i rate of 26% pavable by

corporate entitsas in india on takable profits under the indian tax law.
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

20. Earnings per share % ln Thowusands
Year anded Fear ended
Particulars 315t March, 2025 | 31t March, 2024
From Cantinulng aperations T jper share T pear share
Basl; earnings per share 138 aor
Difuted earnings per share 1.18 n.or

201 Basie Earnings per share

The earnings and welghted avarage number of enuity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as

Fioellorwes.

Yaar ended Year ended
Farticulars 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Frofit for tha year sttributable to owmers of the Conmipany [ A
thowsand | {A] 621.98 F1.88
Welghted sverage number of equity shares for the purpases of basic
earmings per share (8] In thausand 487,50 45750
Baslc Earings per share (A/E} in ¥ 1.8 0.07

20.2 Delisted earnings per share

The earnirgs used in the caloalation of difutsed eamings par share ana as fallaws.

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpase of diluted earmings per share reconciles to the weighted
average number of equity shares used in the cakoulation af basic earnings per shiora as follows:

Yiear ended Year ended
Parthculars 31st March, 2025 | 21st Morch, 2024
Earnings wsed in the calculation of basic sarnings per sharp 611.938 EFEL
Adjustments [describe) =
Earnings usad in the calculation of diluted camings per share (A) £21.98 31.88
Wizighted average number of equity shares used In the cabtulation of
basic eamings per share 487,50 48750
Adpustrmants [describe)
Waighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of
dilutad earmings per share (8] 287.50 45750
Diluted wrﬂE! per share (A8 1.28 oor
e T
l,,'."' f .'\-‘
i L
|
{H~ | " I
piml]
L
. oy
] " i
. - L] :_-"
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2025 - Continued

2.
11

21.2

21.3

Financlal instruments
Cagital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that i will be e to cantifee as Eoing concern while maximising the return 1o
$takeholders through the optimisation of thie debt and equity balancs,

The capital structure of the Lompany comsists of equity of the Company [comprising issuad cdpdtal, security promium resare and
retained earnings.

Categories of financial instruments
¥ in Thowsands
A5t March,
Particulars 31st March, 2025 2024
Financlal pssets
L] Amoitjted
Al Cash and bank balances 4.539.33 145442
i!J] Trade recaivabias 153.52 455.85
) Other financial 35cer 17,520,00 1F.520.00
1Hr|lndi|| liabilivias
r Am d
a) Trade payables 300,06 6.0

Flrancial risk managemant objectives

Tha Campany monitars and manages the financial risks to the operations of the Company. These risks include cridit risk and
liguidity risk,

Cradit risk managompnt

Based on the Company's manitoring of customer credit risk, the Company belisves that np Impairmant allowancs s FECESSATY R
respect of trade recolvables that are ot gast due ar past due but not more thian one year,

Liquidity risk management

repayment periods. The tables hava been drawn up based on the undiscountad cash flows of financial Eabilities based on the earfiess
date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables inclede bath imterest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interast flows are floating rate, the rate applicable as of 315t March, 2075 and 31st Mafch, 2024 respactively has bean considerad,
The contractual matusity is based an the earliest date on which the Compary may be required to pay.

T in Thowsands
315t March, 2025

u Fi I Liabilities

Lease Lishility 7 y % )
Trade Payablas 30005 = = -

30006 : = -
% in Thousands
) _ AIst March, 2024
Mofrities ranci) Lioh
(el 15 of Financip iiities Upba 1 pear 1 ta 3 peors 3 to 5 pedars 5 years & abave

Lease Liahility SrA7

Trode Payables 146.02 =
203,43 =
5

P ALY

i e = )

ik i

|I' s IH ~ i

. i
N
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO ANANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

22. {a) Related party disclosures

(A} Holdi Lkt di
1 Shapoarji Pallonji & Company Private Limited (Utmate Hoiding Comppany )
& Forbes & Company Limited {intermediory Holding Company }

(B} Fellow Subsidiari e there actions
Vaolkart Fleming Shipping & Servicas Limited

Afcons Infrastrusture Limited

shapoorji Pallonji Energy Private Limited

shapoorjl Pallonji Infrastructure Capital Co. Limited
Forbes Precision Tools and Machine Parts Limited
Forbes Macsa Private Umited (w.e.f. 31.03_2025)

(C) loint Ventures [where there are transactions)

1 Forbes Bumil Armada Limited
2 Forbes Macss Private Limited {upto 30.03.2025)

- T T T R
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CAMPEELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
SOTES TO FINANCAL STATEMEINTS FOR THE YEAR DNOED FE5T WIRECH, FOES - Coniirued
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CAMPBELL PROPERTIES & HOSPITALITY SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

2 Mo amount ls due to Small Scale industries [551) as at 31t March, 2025 s defined uader Micra, Small & Mediurm Enterprise

Devalopment Act, 2006.

Figures for the previous year have bhasn rogrouped whearever necessary,

In termis of our réport attached

For Vinodehandra R. Shah & Ca.

Chartered Accountants T
FRN- 115354\ SEL R S

kel 200

Uday V. Shah WG Ay
Partner n ’
Membership No.: 035626 ok

UPIN | 25085822 BMIBNY AR S
Muming, 1Ith April, 2075

SUDHIR WAKURE

NIRMAL JAGAWAT &\rl a.m-rb b
|
RUPA KHANNA (W i

[ Directors

Mumbai, 11th Aprll, 2025
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EFL MAURITIUS LIMITED

(a wholly owned Subsidiary Company)

Financial Statements

For the Year ended March 31, 2025
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EFL Mauritios Limited
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

3 MARCH 2025
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EFL Mauritius Limited

CORPORATE DATA

DIRECTIORS ¢ Maven Dussoruth
Sunil Dhondiram Uphale
Shmad Tarq Hossanee

ADRIINISTRATOR d ddAx froey @) Ocrobey 2024)
& CORPOIRATE Apex Fund Services (Maurtius)y Lid
SECRETARY §'" Flaar, Twae Trilseca
Trikeca Central, Teiamon TXXA1
Republic of Mavritus
REGISTERED 2 s Fromi OF Ogtaber 2024)

OFFICE 6" Floor, Two Tribeca
Tribecs Central, Tranon 72261
Republic of Mawritius

Wesin Baker & Areison
Chartered Acecoanianis
5* Floor, C&R Court
44, Labourdennmis Street
Fart Loans

Repuhlic of Mauritos

AUDITOR

HABC Bank {Maomtius) Limited
lconEbene, Level 3

CHfee | (West Wing), Lot B4 |
Fue de L Institut

Ehéne

Eepublic of Maurtiuz

BANKER
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appoaintment

(2 Diacember 2000
26 August 2006
03 November 2023

AUl 30 Sepromber 30243

Apex Fund Services (Mauriting) Lud
4" Floor, 19 Bank Strect

Cybercity, Ebéne 72201

Republic of Mauritius

{Untid 30 Septenpbey 20248
4" Floor, 19 Bank Stres
Cybercity, Ebdne 72201
Bepublic of Maurtivs



EFL Maurhifus Limited 3

COMMENTARY OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

I Dhveciors ate plessed o present thedr commeniury topether with the sudited financial statemetits of EFL Mauritins
Limited {the "“Company™y for the year ended 531 March 20025

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal seuvity of the Company 15 1o 0etas sn investment holding company,
RESULTS AND MVIDEND

Tz vesults for the year age shiown on the satement of prolic or loss and other comprehensive income and relased noges
The directors did not recommend any declaration of dividend during the year under review (2024 ELR Mil).

DRECTORS
The presemt membership of the Board is set out on page 2. All disectors served office throughout the vear.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company low reguires the directors to prepare financial staiements for cach financiol yeor which present fairky the
financial position, financial perfonnance and cash fows of the Compary, [n preparing these financial statements, die
direciomn are requered to!

« select suitable accounting policies and them npply them consistently;

make judgements and estmates that are ressonable and peudent

v stale whether IFRS Accounting Standasds as Esued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“1ASB7™) have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explamed in the financiol statements; and

+ prepare the financial staiements on the going concern basis unbess it 18 mappropriabe to presme that the Company
will confinmee in busimness

The directors have confirmmsd that they have comphed with (he sbove requirements o preparing the financial statements

The dereciors are responaible for keeping proper sccounting fecords which disclose with reasonable accuracy af any time
ihe financial posizon of the Company and o enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
W auritivs Compendes Aot 2001 and are in accordance with [FRS Accounting Standards. They are alse responaible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for mking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frasd
amwd oither irmegularites.

The directors have made an assessment of The Comgany s ability o continue as & going concem and are satisfied that dhe
Company has the resources 1o continue in business for the foreseeable fenare,

AUMITOR

The auditer, Mexia Baker & Arenson, has mchcated o= willmeness to contume w alfice uatl the et Adanal Meeting,
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EFL Mauritiue Limited d

CERTIFICATE FROM THE SECRETARY
UNDER SECTION Tebid) OF THE MAURITIUS COMPANIES ACT 2081

We certify o the best of our knowledge amd beliel that we have filed with the Registrar of Coanpanies all such
refwms as are required of EFL Maurifivs Limited under Section 166(d} of e Mauritius Companies Act 2001
during the financial vear ended 31 March 2025,

r:ffrf*:_— =

Fow Apex Fund Services (Mouritins) Lid
Corporate Secretary

Registered Cifee;
" Floor, Two Trikeca

Tribeca Central, Toanon 72261
Republic of Mmitivs

Drate: 29" Aprll 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFL Mauritius Limited
Beport on the Financial Statements

(Xpinion

We have audited the financial statements of EFL Mauritius Limited (the “Company™) set out on pages
& to 25 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
palicies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the finaneial position of the Company
as at 31 March 2025, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and comply with the Mauritius Companies Aet 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“IESBA Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with [ESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
OUT Opinion.

thher Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Commentary
of the Directors and Certificate from the Secretary. The other information does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Chur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears (o be materially misstated, 1f,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
mformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF EFL Mauritius Limited
Report on the Financial Statements (continued)
Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Aunditor’s Responsibifities for the Awdit of the Financial Statements

Or objectives are to obtan reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repon that includes
our opinion. Reasoneble assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 18As will always detect s material misstatement when il exists.
Misstalements can arise from fraud or emmor and are considered matenal if, mdividually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  [Identify and assess the risks ol material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting & material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frawd may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

=  Obtamn an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencss of the Company's intemal contral,

* Evalvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors™ use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists refated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,

«  [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required Lo draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures m the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
madify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
nuditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue
as 8 going concerm.
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INDEFPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

T'0 THE MEMBERS OF EFL Mauritius Limited

Report on the Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor's Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financiul Statements {continued)

*  Evaluste the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

awdit and significant audit findings, including any significam deficiencies in intemal control that we

identify during our audit.

Ulse af this report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the

Mauritius Companies Act 2001, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

Company's members, those matters that we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no

ather purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not aceept or assume responsibility to anyone

other than the Company and the Company s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, ar for

the opinions we have formed.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditors.

We have obtained all information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our
examination of those records.

Nexia Bokey ¥ ﬁ“”ﬁ“k

Mexia Baker & Arenson
Chartered Accountants Licensed by FRC

Date: ... L9 AP 205

aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa
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EFL Mauriting Limited a

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITHON
AS AT 31 MARCH 2025

Notes SIS 2024
EUR ELR

ASSETS
Current assets
Prepayments 5 L5384 7,631
Casly and cash equivalents 27184 100,701

BE.R4B 108,332
Total assets EL M EY ] 108,332
EQUITY AND LIABILITY
Capital and reserves
Seabed capital I 28.720.231 28 TA0,23]
Revenue deficit [28,630,191) (29,053,072

040 (333,741}

Current liability
(iher payvable wivd accruals 7 B.E0g 442,075
Total eqguity and linbility UH B4R 108,332

These financinl stifements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 Apeil 2025 and sipned
on b hehalf by

Ahmad Tarlg Hossanee Mavun Dusseruth
Director Director

The mates on pages 12 w0 25 form an mtegral part of these financial statements.
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EFL Mauritivs Limited g
STATEMENRT OF PROFIT DR LSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR 31 MARCH 025
My 205 2024

ELUR EUR
Expenses
[hrectors’ lees 1,730 2,773
F3C fioes 1383 1401
Haonk charpes 1120 1,208
Accounting Fees 335 3,392
TRC fees Bol 1404
Registered office wod secretaniol fees H10 1,003
{ither expenses 773 1,124
Tramsaction fees 457 -
Dishurscmend 2od 16
RO fees 37 119
Windmg up fees - 3,500
Audit feesn - 1.287

B0 17.907
Crperating loss (8,592) {17,807
Loen pavable waived off 432373 -
[nvestment written off 4 - M
Profit/(loss) befare taxation 423,781 (17 0
Taxation A - -
Profit/(loss) for the year 423,781 (17 909y
Chiher comprelensive income - -
Tatul comprebhensive income'(loss) for the vear 413, TR1 (17.8909%

The aoles on pages |2 40 25 form an imvtegral part of these fmancial stalements
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EFL Mauritins Limited 10
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCEH 1025

Stated Fair value Revenue

_capital resgrve deficit Total

EUR EUR EUR EUR

ALl April 2023 2RTION (31T1.954) 2,135,301 (315832
Tetal comprehensive loss for the
er - - {17,904 {17 904
Eeverzal of impairmen - 3170954 (31,171,954)
Al 31 March HI24 28,720,231 - (29, 053,972) (333,741)
Toral comprehensive income for
(he wear - 423,781 423,781
MAb 3 March Z0ZS 18,730,231 - (2R,630,191) 040

The notes on pages 12 o 25 form an mtegral part of these Tnancal siatements
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EFL Muauriting Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLAMWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR 31 MARCH 2025

11

Cush Mows Irom operating netivities

Profitd loss) before taxation

Adjustrents for:

Loon payable waived off

[nvestiment weitten off

Oiperating loss before working capifal changes
Dresrease/{increase) in prepayments

Drecrease in sccruals

Mot eash used In sperating activitdes

Met decrease In cash and cash equivalemes
Cash and cash eguivalents at begimnimg of the year

Cash amd cosh equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages |20 25 form an integral part of these financial sialomenis,
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2013 2024
EUR ELR
413,781 (17.908)
(432373 :
it 2
{8,502) {17.907)
6,047 {7.152)
R0} (227
(3,437) {13.286)
(3,437} (75,286)
L1 el ] FX5 987
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EFL Munriting Limited 11

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2

(a1}

Ceneral information

EFL Mauritius Limited (the “Company ™} was incorposated in Republic of Mouritus under the Masritius
Companies Act 2001 on 02 December 2010 a3 a provate company with lability limited by shores and has
its registered office at 5 Floor, Two Tribeca, Tribeca Central, Trianon 72261, Republic of Muuritius
ipreviously Apex Fund Services (Mauritius) Lud, 4" Floor, 19 Bank Sireet, Cyvbercily, Ebéne 72201,
Republic of Mauritius). It holds a Global Business Licence {(“GRL') issued by the Financial Scrvices
Commission {“FSC)

The prineipal sctivity of the Company is 1o act &5 an investment holding company,
The fingncial stelements of the Company are prssented i Euro [(“ELIR™)
Material accounting policies

The material accounting policies adopred in the preparation of these Mmancial seiements, which have been
applied consisiently, are set cut below:

Basis of prepanstion

The financial statements bave been prepared in accordance with [IFRS Acceunting Standards and under
the higtorical cost soarvention axeepl for fnancial instroments which are stnted ot far value or carmeed at
amoetised cosi.

The preparation of fnancial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards requires the
directors to make estimates and assumpiions that affect the reported amounts of assets and lighalines and
disclosures of contingent aseets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financisl statements and the
reparted amounts of revenues and expenscs during the reporting perniod. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may wltimately differ
from these estimates.

Crping eoncern

The Company’s directors have made an assessment of the Company's ability to continwe as a going
codscery and are Ratisfied that the Company has the resources o continue in business for the foresceahle
future. Furthermore, managemment is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast doabt upon the
Company’s ahility to confinue as & going concemm,

The directors thesefore believe that it is appropriete for the financial statements 1o be prepared  on the
goihg concern basis which assumes that the Company will continus in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.
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EFL Mauritius Limined

MNOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2028

[

€

Material acconnting policles (eontinued)

Staadards, Amendmens (0 publizhed Standards and Interpretaticiss effective in the reporing perod

The accounting policies adopled are consistent with thisse of the previous financisl year, except for the
new standards, amendments ko standards and mierpremtons that were effective as from 01 January 2024,
The Company have sssessed that none of these standards, amendments or interpretations where applicable,

had a material impact on the Company.

Effective for acconnting
Amendments _period beginning on or after
Auendments 1w IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements relating to
Claszification of Liakilities as Cureent of Mon-Current and Mon-Current
Liabilities with covenants | January 2024
Amendments 1o TAS T Smtement of Cash Flows and [FRES 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures relating to Supplier Finance Arranpements I Janoary 2124

The Directors bave considered that the amendments o the definiton of materzal are not expected to have

4 significant mupact oo the Company's financial statemwenis.

d [nterpretations issued but nol vel effecuve

Amend menis

Effective for accounting
period beginning on or affer

Amendinents to [AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange

1 Famneary 2025

Lates relating 1o Lack of Exchangeshility
noual Improvements (o IFRS Accounting Standards — Amendments

e [FRS T Financial Instruments: Disclosures and its accompanying
Cuidanes on implementing IFES 7;

= [FE% % Financinl Instnsmenis; and

« [AS 7 Statement of Cash flows

1 January Z026

oniracts Keferencing Mature-dependent Electricity — Amendments to
IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

I Tanuary I0Z6

Amendments to IFRS ¥ Financial Instruments and ]'FR.STEinanniaE
Instruments: Disclosures regarding the clossificotion ond mepsurement
of Ninancial instruments

I January 2026

IFES 18 Presentation and [Msclosures in Financial Statements. |

Salc or contribution of assets between an investor and it associate or

joint venture = Amendment= w [FRS 10 and [AS 28,

I January 2027

I January 2T

The amemndments are not expected 1o have a materal impact on the Company’s financial statements,
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{d}

(@)

i

Material accoanting palicles (contimused)
i) Fusciers and preseniotior camency

feems included in the Company s financial statements are meagured wsmg the currency of the primary
cconomic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency™). The Company s
performance is evaluated. and it liquadiey is managed in Eure, The financial siatements are presented
in Euro (“EUR™) and all values are rounded to the neprest theusands,

fiy Tronsactiens and bofances

Transaciions denominsfed in foreign currencies are recorded in Buro at the mfes of exchange roting
al the dates of wransactions. Monetary assels and Habilites. st the reportimg date which are
denomimated i foreign curmencies are translated inlo Euro al the rate of exchangs mting at that date.
Exchange differences are taken 1o the statement of profit or  loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial azgel at far value through other com ngive inecome CEVYTOCT)

The Company has a oumber of strategic mvestments in unlisted entity which 15 not accounted for as
suhgidiaries, associaies or jointly controlled entties. For these investments, the Company has made an
irrevocable election o classify the iovestments at FWTOT rather than through profit of s as the
Company considers this measurement 1 be the most representative of the business model for these assets,
They are carried at fair valpe with changes in far value recognised in other comprehensive inceme and
pocumulated i the FYTOCT reserve.

Upon disposal any balance within FVTOCT reserve s reclassified directly to retained carnings and is mot
reclassified 1o profit or loss.

Dividends are recopnised m profit or boss, unless the dividend clearly represents o recovery of part of the
cost of the mvestment, in which case the full or partial amownt of the dividend is recorded agaimst the
gssociated investments carryng amount,

Purchases and sales of financial assets measured at FVTOCT are recognised on settlement date with any
chemge in foir valee between irade date and settlement date being recognised inthe FYTOCH reserve

Income tax

[neome fax expeise comprises curens and deforred (ax. Income tax s recognised o statement of profit or
Toes and oifver compeehensive income except to the extent that it relates to nems recogmised directly in
equily, m which case it is recognised inoequity.

Current tax is the expected tax pavable on the taxable income for the vesr, using thy rtes enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any odjustment 1o @ payable in respect of
PrEVIOWUS YEEE.
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[l

ih}

i)

Muterial accounting policies (confinned)
Dieterned taxation

Deferred 1ax is provided, using the liability method, for all emporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrving values for financial reporting purposes, Currently enacted
tax mies ore wsed to determine deferred wax.

The principal temporary difference ariees from tax losses carried forward. Deferved tax assats relating to
the carry forward of vnased tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probabbe that fuboe axable
profit will be avmlable sgamst which the umised tax losses can be utilised.

Siatad capatal
Orcinary shares and preference shares are classified as squity,

Financial insirumenis

A financial mstrument 5 any contract that gives rse (0 3 financial asset of one entity and o financial
linbility or equity instrument of another entity,

Finaneiad assery
. Initial recognition and measurerment

Financizl assct= are classified, at inittal recognition at fair value and subsequently messuored at
amontised cost, FWTOCL and fair wvalae through prefit or loss ("FYTPLT). The classification of
financial assets at anibial recognition depends on the financial ssset™s contractunl cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for menaging them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not confaim a significant fineneing component or for which the Compeay hes
applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus,
mn the case of a financial azzet not st FYTPL, transaction costa

- Subsaquent measurement

Financial assets al smomised costare subsequently measured wsing the effective interest race {“EIR™})
method and are subgect to impainment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
4 derecogrised, modified or impaired.

The Company”s financial assel ol amortised cost includes cash and cash equivalents, The Company
does not hold other class of Tmancial assers.

= Derecognibion

Financial nssels are derecognided when the rights 1o receive cash flows firoun the fnancinl assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has franaferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership.
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i

Material accounting policies (eontinned

Fimaresdol aesets feoniinued)

Impaiment

The Comipony sisessis on a forwnrd-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
msirurnenis carned st amortised cost The impaimment methodolopy applied depends on whisther
there has been a sigiificant merease in eredit sk, For trade recepvables, the Company applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from imitial recognition of the receivables.

Fimancial ahidities

Imitial recosnition and measurement

Financral labilites are clessified, ot initan] recognition, as finomc) lmbibites st FPYTEL, loans and
borrowimps, pavables, or ns denvatives designated as hedpmg imatruments inan effectres hedype, as

Appropriaie.

All finaneial habilives are recognised imtally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly atriburable ransaction costs,

The Company's inancial Hability includes other payable and accruals.

Subsequent measurement

Dwa measurement categones axist for financial liabilities: FWTPL and amortised cost. Financial
Hahilities held for trading are measured at FYTPL, and all other finarcial lighilities are measured at
amortised cost unless the fair value option 1= applied.

Derecogribion

A financial Lability is derecognised when (be obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
O CXpITES.

il

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash ot bank. Cash equivalents are short term, kighly hood
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an msignificant
nsk of change in value.
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ikl

(13

)

fn)

L)

3.

Material aceonnting palicies (confinued}

Pavables

Payables are recopnised initially at fair value and subsequently stated ot amortised cost The difference
betwesn the ned proceeds received and the amount payable is recogmsed swer the penod of the ascroal
uaing the EIR method.

Expense recognition

All expenses are nccounted for in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the
acereal basis,

Relnted parties
Related parties are individuals and companies where the individual or Company has the abidlity, disecaly

of andirectly, to contral the cther party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
fimancial and operating decisions,

lupadrment

At end of sach reporting period, the Company reviews the carrving amount of its asseis to determine
whether there is any madication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, 1f any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 12 estimaed in order to determing the extent of the impaimment
bass, iF any, amd the camying amount of the assel 15 reduced o its recoverable amount Where {1 (3 ol
possibie o eatimate the recoverablke amount of an individual azset. the Company estintates the recoverable
ameound ol the eash-geneeatmng wint to wiich the asaet belongs,

Proviginns

Provisions are recognised when the Compeny has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past evenis, it is probable fhat an outflow of resources wall be required o setile the obligation, and a
relisble estimate of the amount can be made.

Critical neconnting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statcments requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts recognised in the finonecl statements and disclosure of
contingent habilities, However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outeomes that eould requite a material adjustment to the cammying amount of the asset or lability affected

in future perods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the material accouniing policies, which are described in nofe 2, the direciors
have made the following judpement that has the most significant effect on the amounis recognised in the
Mnancial statements.

Page 62 of 155



EFL Mauwritius Limited 1%

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

X Critical accounting judgemends, estimates and assumptions {continued)

Functionnl cuwrmency

The determination of the fimetonal corrency s orical since recording of transacitons and exchanpge
differences ansimg there from sre dependent on the fanctional currency selected. As described in note
2{d}, the Directors have considered thoge faciors dederibed there and have determined that the fonctional
currency of the Company is the Fueo (“ELUR").

4. Financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income (“FYTOCT™)
2015 2024
EUR ELR
oAb findr virlue
At beginning of the year = 3
Woritten ofl durmg the vear = ()
At end of the year . %

Fimancial asseds at FY TOCT p=s ab 51 March 2025 amosmted EUR Nil,

Finameial assets at FYTOCT a5 at 21 March 2024 wseludes the Fellowing:

Mame of investee  Country of Mumbar 5y
Company incorporation  Twpeofshorss  shares  held e Fair valee
{Unquoted) ELR EUR
Forbes Lux
Inrernacicmnal Orrdinary
Al Switzerland shores 3300 B9 2RI .
Forbes Lux
[nbemational Farticipation
AG Kwitrerland shares" A, 2000 1% 28257765 -
ﬂnlil?lﬂﬁﬁ =

* The participatons shares kave no voling rights.

On 51 March 2024, Forbes Lux Internationsl AG was liguidated, the mvesiee Company m which the
Company held ordinary and pamicipation shares. The fair value of the shares beld in Forbes Lix
Intermational AG was EUR 2 as of the prior reporting date aid had bean fully written off in 2024,
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%

)

1

()

(<)

Prepayviments

F5C fecs

IR fees
Agcounting fees
Direclors” fees

Registered office and sconctarial focs

MLRO foes
D&l
RO fees

Stated capital

Fixaieed e fully poid wp:
Ciredi shares of EL -
At beginning and end of the year

i each
Al begmning and end of the year

Total

2015 2024
ElR EUR
1,389 G2}
195 1,063
- |,&25
- 1,736
. aLn
= 173
- 165
. 13T
1584 T.611
Number of shares Amonnt
225 2024 1025 2024
ELUR EUR
150001 15,001 15001 15,001
2R.705, 20 EHE'.'I'LISJE_}D_ 2R, TS, M) F8,705,230
28.720.231 28,730,331 28, 7ML 23 28, T2, 231

The Preference Shares shall have the following rights:

The right to seceive notice of and 10 vote at any meeting of the Shareholder, with each Preference Shase

having one vole;

The Preference Shares shall be redecmable at the option of the shorehalder ot any time between the penod
follewwung the second year of their issue unt] the nometesnth vear of thear issae. The Preference Shares shall
be redecmied at their par valoe, or al such other price as may be determined by e directors; amd

The Preferenee Shares shall be copverttble into Ordinary Shares at the ratio of 151, of the option of the
sharcholder at any fime between the period following the segond year of thedr issue watil the ninareenih
year of their issue. For the avoidance of doubt, one Participating Share is eonvertible into one Ordinary

Share,
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y

(Mher payables and aceruals

25 24
ELR ELR
Puvable to related party {see note 9) - 432373
Acerusls _ HB08 9,700
#8508 442073

The payable to related party has boen waived off during the vear,
Taxation
Income tax

Under the new Mouritius tax regime, the Company is eligible to 80% tax partial exemplion on certain
categories of income such as foreign source dividend, interest income of income derved by fund
structures, provided the Company meets necessary substance requirements and Core Income (Generating
Activity (“CIGA™) conditions as laid out in the Financial Services Act 2007, the Income Tax Act 1995
and the Income Tax Regulations 1996, Alternatively, the Company may take ceedit for tax suffered
oversens in respect of an mecome, subject to a cap of the Mauritius tax payable on that income. The
Company s also allowed o use tax suffered overseas on & particular income against tax {including
Corporate Chmate Responsibility) arising on other forcign source income,

Further, the Company is exempted from income tax in Mauritius on profits or gains arising from sale of
securitics, In addition, there is no withholding tax payable in Mauritins in respect of payments of dividends
to Bhareholders or in respect of redemplions or exchanges of shares.

The Income Tax Act of Maurittus has been amended to include the Corporate Climate Responsibility
{"CCR") levy. Every Company shall in every year be liable to pay an equivalent of 2% of its current vear's
chargeable income, as CCR levy 1o support netional imibiafives to prolect, mansge, invest and restore the
country s natural ecosystem and combat the effect of climate change. The CCR levy shall be paid in
respect of the vear of assessment commencing on | July 2024 iand in respect of every sebhsequent vear of
mssessmend. The CCR levy is payable by a Company with respect to & year of assessment where the
turnover exceeds Maurtian Rupees 50 million (equivalent USIY 1,075,000, For the year ended 31 March
2025, CCR levy was not applicable for the Company,
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B. Tauxation (eontinwed)
b. Tax reconciliation
1015 224
EllR ELR
F]'Uﬁ'llI“lJHF hﬂrﬂl’: taxation #23:;3' |: 17 5'“':']'
Tnx caleulated a1 3% (2024: 15%) 63 567 (2,686)
[moome not subject bo fax (64, 556} :
[Meferred fax asset not recognised on tax losses 1,280 2 656
Tax charged < E

A3 Masch 2025, the Company had accumulated tax losses amounting to EUR 73,630 (2024: EUR
R0, 749) amdl s therefore not fiable to income tax. During the year, ax logs amounting to EUR 15,713
(2024: EUR 10981} has lapsed. The scoumulsted tax losses are aviilable for net off npaimst taxable
eame arising i the fohcoming five years only.

e Deferred tnx

A deferved ax asser of EUR 1,289 (2024 FUR 2.686) has not been recognised during the vear in respect
of the tax loss camed Forward as the directors consider thid it 15 not probalibe that fimee taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tox foss can be utilised.

o, Helated party (ransaction

During the year under review, the Compeny transacted with the below related entity. The nature, value of
trarsaction and the balanee with the endry are ag (ollows:

MName of MNature of Mature of Value of
related party relatiomship transactions  (ransactions 2025 2024
EUR EUR EUR
Forbes & Amount
Company Shareholder payable (432.373) - 432373

The abhove transaction has heen made at arm's length, on normal commercial ferms and in the normal
course of business,

Page 66 of 155



EFL Mauritius Limited 12

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

T

{a)

Financial instruments and associated risks
e
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instroments;

- Marker risk
- Credit risk
Ligquidity nisk
Complisnue rsk
- Capial management risk
Political, ceonomic and social nsk

Risk managemens framework

The Bogrd of Directors has oweral]l responsibility for the establishment ond  oversight of ihe
Company's risk management framework.

Market risk

Mlarket risk 1% the risk that changes m market prices, such os foreign exchange rafes, interest rates and
pquity prices will affect the Company™s income o The value of i3 holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of markel risk management is o manage and conirol market risk expesures within sccepiable
parameters, whils optimising the refurn,

Cwrreney ik

The Company conducts transactions in Eure ("EUR™) Conseguently, the Company is not exposed fo any
forcign currensy risk as 1t only kolds finaneial assets and financial Gabilities which are denomimated m
EUR,

fnterest rode vk

The majorty of the Company s financial assets and Labilities are non=inierest bearmg and a5 3 resuli the
Company is not subject to significant amounts of sk due to fuctuptions in the prevarling levels of market
interest rates,

Equity price visk

Fauity paice risk is the risk thar the fair valoes of equities decrease as & resalt of changes m the kevels of
the equity indices and the value of individuai stocks,

The Company imvests n unhsted Company whose secunties may be considered o be illiquid. Such
illiquadity miay adversely affect the abibity of the Company to acguire or dispose of such investment. The
imvestment may be difficult o valoe and 1w sell or otherwise liguidate and the fsk of investing in such
Company is much greater than the sk of investing in publicly traded securities. However on pecount of
the inherent uncertainty of valuation the estimated volues may differ from the valwes thar would be used
had a ready market for the investment existed.
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1.

(b

L

Financial instruments and associated risks (eontinmwed)
Credit nsk

Credit risk arises when a failure by counterparty to discharpe their obligations could reduse the amount
af future cash inflows from financial assets on hand ai the end of the reporting pericd.

The Company’s credit risk wrises principally from financinl asset at FYTOCT and cash and cash
eguivalents. The Company™s policy is to maistain its cash and bank balance with a reputable banking
imstitution pnd (o monitor tee placement of cash and bank balonces on an ongoing bagie,

[e maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period ws:

2025 2024
EUR ELUR
Counter party
Cash and cash equivalent W7, 2hd 108, 700

sk ard eash eqpavalents

The bank balance has been assessed 0 hivve low credit risk as ar 31 March 2025 as it is eld with a repugable
banking institution,

Liguidity niak anses when the matuniy of assets and habilities of 0 Company do not match.

Pruddent liquidity risk management implics mamtammg sufficient cash and the availability of funding from
at adequate amount of commiied credin facilines and the ability o close out market positions,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company s liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash
flows,

The materity profile of the fnencial Lability 15 summarised as follows;

3 months o 1
{30 demand year Total
EUR EUR EUR
208
Other pavable ond socruals 4 B.B08 £.50%
2024
Criher payable and accruals 432373 0T 442 073
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{[3

(dl

le)

Financisl instruments and associatod risks (continued)

Compliance fisk

Compliance risk arises from a Guilure or inability o comply with the lnws, regulations or codes applicable
to the industry. Nos-complisnce can lead to fines, public reprimands, and enforeed suspension of
opeTations or; in extreme cases, withdrawal of authonsation 1o operate.

Capital managemen nsk
The Company's abjectives when managing capital are to safegusrd the Company’s shility 10 continue as

& BOINg concem in order (o provide retums for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optunal capital stroctere o reduce the cost of capital.

Eair values
The corrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and other payable and accruals approx imate their fair
v lues,

Accounting classifications ared fale velues - fair value hierorchy

The tables below analyse fair valee measurements for financial assets and fnancial Habilites, by the
levels i the Fair value Berarchy based on the inpuis to valuation techmigues.

The following table shows the carrving apwounts 2nd fair values of Anancial sssed and Fnancial obilities,
includimg thedr kawvels in the fair value hierarchy. It dose not melude faie valoe information for Aaancial
peset andd financial labilites nol measured at fair volue if the camrying amount 8 8 reasomshle
approximation of famr value.

Fuancial agset and financial labithties not camed at far valoe but for which fair values are disclosed

helow:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 - Total
EUR EUR ELUR EUR
2025
Cash and cash equivalents - 07,264 - 97,264
Total asset - 47,264 - 97,264
Accruals = i 4,808 8 H0%
Total liakiliy - - {1 B H0E

Page 69 of 155



EFL Mauritius Limited 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDE 31 MARCH 2025
I, Financial instruments and associated risks jeontinied)
in Fair values {continued)
Accowriing classifications and fei values - fale vadve Merarchy Sortimoed)
Lewvel | Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
2024
Cash and cash equivalents 100,701 - 100,741
Total asset 1 (K3, T - 100, T
Paynble to reloted pamy - - 432 373 412 373
Averanls : = 4,700 9,70
Taotal liahilities - - 442 073 ddx (73

The Company recegnises transbers between Levels of fair value hierarchy as of the reporting peried during
wrhich the irangfer has occwrred. There has been no transfer between the levels m 2025 {2024 no transfer

i el directio),

11, Conitingent Habilitles

Ap 3] March 2025, there was no contingent liability arising in the ordinary course of esmess,

11. Hulding company

The Drirectors comsider Forbes & Company Limiled, 2 company incosporated in [ndia, a2 the Company'z holding

COMpIENY.

13 Events after reporting period

There hove been no moterinl events after the reposting date which would require disclosune or
adjustment 1o the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025,
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CHARTERED ACCCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORY

To The Members of FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMLTED
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Qpinicm

We have audited the accompanylng [nd A% fnanoal staterents of FORBES
CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED ["the Campany”], which comprise the Balance Sheot
¥5 at Marck 3L, 2025 and cthe Stztemept of Frofit and Losz{including CQt4er
Comprehensiva [mcomel, the Stalemeant of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and nates to the [ng A5 financial statements,
mzluding 8 sumcmary of Lgnificant accounting  policies  ang othar explangtory
Infarmatian for tne year ended on that date

[N our oginion and te the best of our ic“ormation anc according to the explanations
dlven ta us, the aforesad [nd AS finarc. al stalements gwe the nfarmation required
by the Companies Act, 2013 in Lhe manner so required and give g true and falr wiew
in Conformity with the accounting principles generally accapted in Indig, of the state
of affairs of the: Company os at March dl, 2025, and its profit, changes in eguty and
I's cash flows for the vear erded on FRat date.

Basis of Gpinion

We conducled our audit in ageordznce with the Stanoargs on Auditing (Sas) specilied
undar sectlon 143(10% of the Comoanles AT, 2013, Our respansibilities urder thoge
Standards are furthe- described in the Auditor’s Responsibilfties fur the Ausit of e
Ind AS Financial Statemerts seckign of aLr report. We arg independent of the
Lompany in accerdance with the Sode of Eihics issued by the [mstitute of Chartered
Atcountants of India togather with e athica) requireamente that are ralsvant @ our
audit of the 1nd AS financial statements uncear the previsions of the Companies Act,
2012 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled aur gther cthical responsibilitlay
in accardance with these requirements and the Cpde of Ethics, We helizve that the

audit cvidenca we hawve gbtained 1$ sufficesr and AQEropriate to provige a baoy for
cur modifiad cpion.

Emphasis of Matter (EQM) Paragraph:

We deaw attantior te Note 5 of the finanrial stalements, Wwhich deserbes the status of
fhe Compamyes investment in Fartes Toohnos ys Lurited [FTL) A stated in the note,
e Nalional Cormpany Law tribpnal, Momibaai Benck (NCLT b vide e order dated March
<4, 2025, has sduitted the perition titag My FTL wnder Sectton (0 of ¢he Insoivency
anl Bankvrupicy Code, 2016, and coREeqUently, the Corporate fnsovency Regaojuton
Process (CIKF) has been inineted, The mandgeameant s powvarys of the Boarg aF
Cirectors of FTL f#gve been susperndad amt are Being crercised by Mre floterim
—Rasolufion Professicnal (IR2).

— -
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Further, the Campamy has reciassiied ft5 ivestoterd i FTL from associate fo other

imyestrmcat, a5 it o fonger has saeificant influence or confrod, and the entirg
rivastrment has been fuily provided for

Dwr gpinion js not modified in respect of this maller.

Infermation ather than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
tharedn

The Company's Board of D -octors 1§ résponsible for Eree prezaration of the olher
infarmaticn. The athzr intormation compr ses the informatlon neluded in the Boards
Repart incleding Annexures to Boa-gd's Report, but doct rot include the Ind AS
financial staroments 2nd aur audicor's =eport thereon.

Qur opmlon on the Ind AS financial clatements dogs not cover Lhe other informaban
and we co nok express any form of assuranee canclusian Ehereon.

In connechidn with our audit of the Ind AS finandial statemenis, aur responsibinty is
Ed read the othet nformation and, in doing o, consider whethar che ather informakian
ls rmaterially ncarsistent with the Ind AS fAnarmslal ssatements or oor knowl=dge

Cbtained dutng the course of aur awdlt or otherwse appears to be mataerally
risstated.

I7, based gn the werk we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material
mrsstatement of this other informatan, we are required to report 1hae fact, We have
nathifg to repert n s -agard.

Responsibility of Management and Thase Charged with Govemnance for the
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of D rectars 18 respansible far the matters stated n mection
134(5) of the Companies Act, 20273 (MBMe Act™ with recpect fothe prezaration of [hess
Ind A5 financlal statermnents that give a trye and fzir viow of the firancial position,
fnancia performance, changes in equity and casn flaws of the Company In aoeardance
with the accounting pnnaplas generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounhng Standerds specifiad under section 133 af the Act, This responcibiity alsg
includes rantenance of adequate avcodnting recsrds M accardance with the
provisians of the At For sa‘equarding of the assets of the Company and for Preventisgy
and detecting frauds and other rregularities: weleclion and application of appeopgriate
accounting policies; making Jucdygments ard €stimates tiat are reasonablie and
prudent; and design, Implemantation and mantenancze of adequate inkzrmat Financial
controlg, that were cperating offactive.y tar ensunng the sccuracy and compoetengss
of the accocunbmg records, relevant ta Lhe preparation ang prezentstion of the [nd &%
financial staterment thatb give a true and fairr view and are froe from material
misstaterm=nt, whatter due ta fragd or Sreor,
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11 preparing the financial seaterments, management 15 responsible far assessing the
Lompany’s azility ko continae as & going voncern, disclosing, as appicable, matters
related io going cancern and ysing the going concern basis of aecoypking unless
managermeant sither intends o hquidake the Compasy ar io cease operations, ar has
na realstic alternative but to do so.

Those Board af Drcilors are also respansible for overseend the Company's financlal
reporking process,

Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to oMain reascnable assurance about whelher the firarcial
statements as 2 whalg are free from malenal misstaterment, whether due to frapd or
error, ard to issue a0 auditcr’s report that ingludes our apinion. Reasanable assuranre
i= & hlgh lewel| of ascurancs, bk it is not @ quarantze that an audit conducted iR
accerdance with SAs will aways derect 8 material missaterrert when It axislsg,
Migstataments can arise lrom fravd of error and dre considered materia) if, individually
ar an the aggregate, they could rezsonably bo cxpoested o influence the ¢esnamic
decisions of Lsers *aken gn the basis of thess fnancial statermeonts,

A¢ part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercice professional judgmeat and
malntain professional skeplicism throughoot the audic. We also:

* ldentify and 2ssess the risks of material misstatarment af the fFrancal sletements,
whether due ta fraud o- errar, design a1d porform audit proccdlres raspansive to
those ricks, and ebtain audit evigence that is sufficient and approprlate to provide
@ basiz for our opinlen, The risk of nel detecting a material misstaremant resultirg
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from oreoe, 35 fraud may .fvoke

collusian, forgery, ntentional pmissions, micrepresantations, ar the averride of
internal congepl.

v {ibtain an Lndarstancing of internal contral relevant ta the gudit in order to design
#U9IL procedurcs that are approprite i bhe circorrstances. Under section
14303)(1]) of the Compamcs Act, 2013, we are alsn responsible for EXPrEEEINg our
apriion on whether the Company has adequate intemal financial contrals systemn
11 placa and the operabing ettectivencss of sueh cantro s,

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of acosunting palicies wyed and the reasanableness
of eccounting astimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Lancluae en the appropriatenass of managemant's usy of the goINg cohcer® oasis
of accounting arel, based an the presentation,

Matgslality s the magnitude of misstatements in the frargisl statements that,
individua:ly or in aggregate, make ks prosgble that the coonomic decisions af o
reasenzbly <nowledgeable user of tMe financial statements may be inflienced. We
can§lder quantitative materaiity and gualitative factors in {1} planning the scope of
Cur audlt wark and ih evaluatiag the results of cur work:; and £i} 12 evaluate the effect
of amy identified misstaterngnts n the financial seatements.,
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We comrnunicare with tiose charged with govarnance rogarsing, amonmy ather
mailers, the planned scope ana timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
mcluding any sianificant defioencivy in intemai contral that we dentify during cur
audit..

We alsp 2rovide those charned with gevernance with a stalemnment that we have
semplied with relevan? ethical recuiremenss ragarding independence, and to
tommunicate with ther all ralationships amd other matters that may -easonatiby be
thought to bear gn our independence, and where rpplicable, related safeguarcs

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 ["the Ordar®), 1s5ued
by the Central Government at India in tonms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Companles Act, 2013, we qive in the "Annexure &' 3 statement on the mattors
specifizd in paragrapks 3 and 4 of 1he Qrder, to tha extest applicable.

Z. Ac required by Scction 145{3) ot the Act, we report that:

a. We have soughl ard obtaned all the infermaticn and explanations which to the
bact of gur knowledge and befief were necessary tor the purposcs of our audit

b. In our ezlnian, proper books of aceaunt as required Dy law have becn kopt by
Ihe Company so Far as il appears from our examination of thoge backs,

€. The Balahce Sheet, the Stateruent of Profit and Loss, The statement of Cranges
i équity and the Cash Flow Statemeal dealt with by thig Report are in
agrearnent with the boaks of socgant.

d. In our apmleh, the aforesac] Ind AS financal slatements camply with the
Acceunt:ng Standards specified undsr Section 133 of the Act, reed with Rule 7
&f the Compames {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e On the hasis of the written resrezentations received from the directers as sn
March 31, 2025 taken on recard By the Board of Directors, none of the direclors
ts disgualificd az or March 31, 2025 froum being azpainted as a director in terme
of Section 164 (2} of Lhe Act

£, With rospect to the adequacy af the inkternal financial contrals over financlal
reporting of the Company and the operating effeckivenecs. of tuch controls,
refer Lo our separate Report in "Annexyra B,

g. Witn raspect to the othar matkters to be Included in the Auditar's Report in
accardande with Rule 11 of the Comparies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, n

our Gpinlon ani: o the best of aur Infgrmatior and according to the explanations
Oran ko ys-

] ==
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b

The Company does nat have any pendmg litigations which would impact ity
finang:al positior cxcept those disclozad in finarcial statamanty:

. The Company dd nat have any lang-term contracts Ireluding derivalie

tonracts far wnich there wers gny matenal fareseeable lnsses:

There were no amounts which wers required ko be transferred ta *ha
Investor Bdugation and Protection Fund by the CGMmpany.

. Un the basis of the writt2r represen-alinns received from the managaormark

a3 01 March 32, 2025, ne tunds have bzen advanced ar oaned or
investad by tMe company to ar in any cther perspn(s) or enbbes, including
foreign  enbties [("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in wnting or otherwise, that the insermagisry shall, whether,
diractly or indirectly |enc or invest in gthar perschs o cntities identified in
Ay rranner by of on beha T of the company [UJltimate Benefiviaries) or

provide any quarantee, securicy or the llke on behalf of ylRfmate
banaficiaries

dn the basis of the written representakions reeeived fram tho
management as on March 31, 2025, no funds have been received by
the company trom any personfs) or entities Including foreign antiliss
{("Funding Partics™) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or Indirectly, lend or invest in otner persans or antities
identified In any manner whatsoeyer by or an Balalf of the funding party
tultimate benef.ciares) or provide nuarantes. sacurity oo the ke on
behalt o the Wlimate beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performiad, mothing has ceme o our
nctice that has caused us Lo celieva that the elow reprecontations given
by the management conzain any material mis-statement,

- Lwring the year Company has net daclered/pald any dividerd hence repo-ting

under rule 11 (f] 15 not applicable te thal extent.

Based on our examination which Included test checks, the company has used
acctunting scfoware fer maintaining s books of account, which has a fealure
af recording audit trail (edit log) facilicy and the same has operated CareLghout
the year fur all reievant transactions rocorded in the saftware. Further, durlag
the course of our audit, we did Kot come across any instance of the audit trail
feature bong tampered with. Additionally, the zudit trail has boan praserved
b the company as per the sTatutery reguirement for recerd retertian,
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3. With respect to the other matters to be (ncluded in Eme Aoditor's Peport in
accordance witn the requirements of soctlon 19 A{15) ot the Act, as amended: In
oUr apmlan and to bthe best of aur infarmatlon and arcerding o the expiarations
given ta us, o remuneration h4s bean paid by the Compary to ks directers duning
Lhe year so the provisions of scotion 197 of the Act are nat applicable.

HMR U B Q& Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 141076W

aurav J. Parekh

FPartnear

Membership No.: 140694
Mumbal, Dated;: 11th April, 2025
UDIN: 2514D5948BMHXFW4220
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Anngxure ‘A’ to the Ingdependent Auditor’s Report of FORBES CAMPBELL
EINANCE LIMITED for the Year ended as on 31st Maych 2025

Annexure referred o in paragraph 1 under the heading "Repard o Other

Legal ard Regulatory Reguiraments” of our report on even date;

9. [A] The company is mainta’ning zroper records shaowng Full parkicylars,
neUding quantitative detalls ang sttuation of Properly, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The Company has na intangible assets as on J1sl March 2025, Therefore,
the parzgraph 3(i3B) of the Order iz nat applicable bo the Company.

b. The roperty, Plent and Equipreent have besn physially verified by the
Managerment at requlas Intarvals and no mater-al discrepancies were noticed on
sueh verificatian,

. Arcorting £ tha infarrmalien and explanation pravided to us and on the basis
of owr examnination of the records of vhe company, the bHbe deeds of one
immcyable  property  {investment property] angregating  Re. 14,633,832
{Previals Year: Rs. 18,10,217) {net book walle) sre not availabie with Lhe
company ard hence we are dhable to comment on the same. Howewsr,
property receipt of the particular immgvable property issuexd by the local
municipal corparatien 1 tne name of the cerrpeny is available with the
CAMmpIany,

d. The compeny has rat revalued ts Froperty, Flant and EQuipmont or Imtangible
azsets or both during the wear.

e, Based an the information and explanations furnished k9 us, g proceedings have
been inziated on are pending against the rempary for holditg benami praperty
wridar the Prehibllion of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1982 (as amended
Ih 2016) and Rules meade thersunder, and therefore the queslion of our

tommenting 9r whather the Comprany aes agproprataly disclosed the detals in
ikg fimancia' statocmerk: foes not arse.

As per the informanon and explanations given o us, there is no iMventary in hand
ol any point of time during the year, hence paragraph 3(iiY of the O-der ls net
agplicable ta the Company,

According &2 the Information and cxplanat ans given to Js, the Company nas net
made inyestment in, proviced any guarastee, or security or grante? Wny l2ans or
advantes it nature of leens, secared or unsecurad o companics, limitas lizbility
partnerships o- any other parties, hence paragraph ${olia) to 3 (i) |s net
applicable to the compaty,

In ous apinlen and accarding ta the infermation and oxplanations given b as, the
Company has entered Into bransaction in respect oF l0ans and invostmants complying

with the pravisions of soctiony 18Y 2nd 186 of the Companies Act and rules framed
thereundor.
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v, Rccording o the informabion znd exp.aartions given to us, the Company has not
sutepted any deposits or armoonts which are deemed o pe tdeposits and the
directives issued by the Rese-ve Bank of Inoa and the provisions of sectlens 73 kg
76 ar any other relgvsnt provisione of the Companies Act and the rules framed tharg
under are rot apolicable to the Company, Therefore, the paragraph 2(y) of the crdor
l= not apzlicakle to the comzany.

Wi

wii.

The Sub-section (1] of the Section 148 of tF & Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable 1o
tre Lampany, hence paragraph 3(vi) of the arder is not applicable by the Cormpany.

H]

)

. Nature of

According to the infarmatizh and explan stions Jiwen o us wnd on the basis of
our examination of the Loaks of accounts, the Company KHas been geonerally
reguler 11 deposiling und sputed glatutary Sueg Including gonds & servica tax,
provident fund, empleyvee state msurdnce, incame tax, service tax, valye adced
t3x, cege and other sfotuktory dues during the year with the Appropriate
Bethor i .

Accord'ng o the Infarmacion and cxplanations Quven Lo us, nNo wncisputed
amnunts pavable in rescect of providenl fund, mcome *ax, value added tax, duty
of cuszoms, service tax, £ess and cthor material statutocry dues wera n arrears
as 4t March 31, 2025 for 2 period of more than six months from date which EFEy
became payvable.

Accarding to the informator and explanation glven to us, there are no dues of
income tax, goods and sarvice tax, duty of CuUstoms, walue agded tax, ress and

any ather statutory dues which have o1 been deposited on accownt of dissute
except Bre followinrgs-

. Téq{ .h.r:L_

Naturg of Forum where Pericd to Amonnt
the Statute the dues Disputa is which tha {Rs.)
Pending amaunt
. _ - relatas o
Ingome Tax  ; Income Tax | Cammissioner of Fe 23 g4 i 1,40,41.352
[Nearme Tax
- 1 C[Appeals? 0 L
s INCo e Tax Income Tax  Tnoome Tak Fr 2004-05 75,320
) A ppel late :]"I bunal o
Incomo Tax | Income Tax | Incorme Tax Fr 2007-08 1,990,459
_ Appellate Tribunal o
Income Tax  Income Tax Commisciongr gf Fy 2008-0% 25.15,B20
Incorme Tax '
(Appeals) L L i ]
| Incame Tax | Ineatee Tax | [icome Tax FY 200%-10 1,72,33,150
Appellate Traunsl
- Madhwa saes Tax | Commerdal Tasx, | Fr Le97-95 w 10,09,077
+radash sales | Dernand Rhapal 1955=3 00
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wil, Ag Zer intprmation and qxplaration pravided to us, theqe are no transections belng
nat recorded in ke books of accaunt and that have hesn surrendered or disclosed

#5 income during the year in the (2 assessments under *kBe [neome Tax AsE, 1951
(43 af [951).

. The Company has not taken term loans from any lender during the Yaar, asnce
paragragh 3(ix) of the ¢rdar /s not applicable to the Campary,

X. The Compasy nes nat raised any money by way of initial public offer ar further public
affer {including debt instrumants) and the term Ipan during the vear. Hence
reportirg under this clausce 3(x} of the arder is not applicable to the Compay,

xi, Accarding ko the information ard explanatiar given to us by the management whichk
Nave bean raliwl by us, thore wera ne frauds om ar by the Company noticed or
repatled during the parigd wnder audit.

¥m. The Company s not A Nidhi Company and hence claused (i} of the Order is not
applcabla g the Compary,

Wi, According to the information and explanations yiven to us and Based on our
examination of the records of the Cornpany, all trancactions with tne related parties
ere in tumpliance with sectiors 177 and 183 of the Companies Act, 2013 whera
applcable and the delails of such transaclions have been disclosed in Eho Ind- AL
Financ.al sktatements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

giv, Internal aedit is nct 2opleab.e o the Comzany, thersfore reparbing under this cladsa
i% not applicakle.

ov. AccerdIng tw the nfgrmatien end oxplanations given [0 s and based on our
cxarminat.on of the records of the Company, tha Company has ngl entered into any
noa-cash transactions with dirsctors or porsans connected with him, Accordingly,
paragraph 3(«v) of Lhe drder s not applicabie,

®vl. Accarding [ the informzbon ard explanations glven ta us and the records examined
hy us,

al the Company is nat reuirez to be regislered under Secucn A5-I4 of che
Resetve Bank of Tnaia Act, 1934, Accardingly, raparting on paragraph 3 Clause
(xwijfa) of the crder iy not acphicabla ta the company.

b} the Company has not conducted non-banking tinancial/housing  tinance
gctivities during the year, Accardingly, reporting an paragraph 3 Clause (swiik)
of the order is nat applicable to the company,

=~} 5
“
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FATITE

Awiin.

HiK,

e

€] the Cuompany is rot 3 Core [nveslment Company (C1C) as dstined in the
regulations made the Reserve Rank of Inca, Accordingly, ~cporting on
paregraph 3 Clause {xvi){c) of the order Is nal applicable to the company.

The compeny has not incurrad any cysh iosses during the “nanelal year, therefore
reportiteg Lnder this c.awse 1s nor appheable.

Tlere hes heea na resignation of statutary zuditars during the yeas and ageordingly
Lhis € ause i not applicable.

Accarding Fo the informaticn and explanations giver to us and on the basis of the
firarcial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realizalinn of financial assots and
paymant of finarcial llabibt.as, other nformation accompanying the financial
staterments, our knowledge of the Beard of Directars and monagzment plans and
based on our examination of the evidence suppartng e assumptions, nothing kas
LOITE T oUr @tention, wrlich &auses us to believe that amy rmakerial uncertainty
@Xists as oh Lhe date of the audit report that capany is not capabla of meeting its
llabilities existing at the cale of halance sheet as and when they fall due withla a
period of ang year from the balance chegl ek,

We, however, state that this 13 not an assurance as 1o the Fulire viabilty of Lhe
taripary, We Further state that our reporting 1s based on the {acts up to the date of
the audit repart and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurasce that all
liabilittes falling duc within 3 period aof cne yoar feom the balance sheet dale, will gat
d:3charged by the company as and when they Fall due.

SECticn 135 of the Corripanies Act, 2013 rogard Ag spanding on CSR s met applicable
to the Company. Therefore, recorting cnder the said clause is not appllcatle.

FORURB G B Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 141076W

', N‘J,:_Q’ff

Gaurav ), Parekh
Partner
Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai, Dated: 11th Aprll, 2025
UDIN: 25130654BMHXFW4 229
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE EPENDENT RS' REPORT
[Referred to |n our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls undar Clause () of Sub-saction 3
of Sectlon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act™)

We have audited the internal financlal controls cver M-oncial reporting of FORBES
CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED ("the Cumpany”) as of March 31, 232510 conjunction

wilh our audit of the Ind AS financal staterments of the Company *or the yoar ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's managomert [ responsble Tar estaslisning and maintaining internal
finencial cantrols based con the internal contral over financial reparting criteria
extablished by the Company considenng the essential companents of . lernal control
staled in the Gwdance Note on Adit of Internal Financial Contrals rvar Financeal
Reparting issued by Lhe Inskitute of Chadtzred Accountamts of India fthe *GCuidance
Mota”). Taese responsitlities include the degitn, implemaentatlon and malntenanee of
adequate internal financial comtrals that were operating affertrely for ensuring the
urdery and eff.cient conduct of its business, including adhargnce to Company's
policies, the safaguarding of its ascets, the provention ang detection oF Frauds and
errars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, and the limaly

preparation of reliable financial mfgrmation, as roquired under the Companies et
013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Owr respensibiity s to @xprass an opltigh on the Compary's internal nancial cantrisle
aver finangial reportng based on gur audt. Wa conducled cur audic 10 aceardance
with the Guidarce Note and Lhe Standa-ds on Auditing, 1seued by 1CAL ard desmed
ta be prescribed under section 143(10% of the Companies Act, 2017, ta *he extent
applicable ta an audit of interral financial cahtrals, both applichible v an audit gt
Internal Financial Contrals and, both issued by the Instilule of Chartered Atcourtants
of India. Those Standards and |he Guidanca mgle require that we comply with atbical
requirements and plan and zorform the audit t abtair reasonzable assurance aboul
whether adequate intemal financial comtrals over financial ~eporting wags extablisnad
and maintned and if such controls cperate gfectively inoall material rospocts,

Aur audit involves partorming procedures to obraln audit evicence abouk the adeguacy
of the intamal financia, eankbrois syslen over Anandal reporting and thoir $parating
cffectivencss. Our audit of internal financlal controls aver ARancial reporting In¢hrded
ablaining an understsnding of nternal financlal controls aver financial epeorting,

audc AR T FOF R 202a-0%
Hage j 11

Page 82 of 155



asE@Lsing the risk thak a inaterial weakness exlgts, and testing and evaluating the
desrda and eperating effectivensss of interral contro! Besad on the ascessed rick. The
procedures selected depend o ke suditar's judgrment, incluging the as%essment of
Vhe risks ot matemal misstaterment of Lhe Tnd AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud ar errp-,

We believe thal the audlt evidence we hayve abiained is suTicien, and aperapriate ko
provide 2 basis for our acdit opinlan on the Lompany’s intemal financlal cantrois
syslem over financial reporting.

Meaning cf Internal Financial Controle gver Financial Reparbing

A Cocrmpany's into-kal financgl conoeol over firancial reparing is a process dosigned
o provide reasonablo assurance ~egarding the rehasility of financial re parting and the
preparation al Ind AS financial stalements Far excernal purposes in accordance with
generally accepred asvaunting principles, & Campuny’s internal financial contrel ower
financial reporting includes those policies #nd orocedures that (1) pertain to Lhe
maintenange of recards tha:, in reasonablo detail, accurately and fairly reflsct the
transacbions and disposioens of the agsets of the Company; [2) provide reagenable
assurance that transactions are racorded os NECassary to permit pregaration of Ing
AS financiz! statemenrs in accordatce with generally accepeed accounting principles,
and that receipts and expand-ures of the Com pany are brifg made any in aceordance
witn authorizations of managemeant and directors of the Company; and (3] provide
reasonade assurance regardimg prevesljon or limely detaction of unautharized
acquisltion, use, ar dlsposition of the CarmMpany's 2seets that could hawe a material
atfect cm the Ind AS financlaf scaterments,

Inherent Limitatians of Internal Finaricial Contropls over Financial Reporting

fecause of 1he idherent limitatiors af jnkernal financial eonrois aver financal
reparting, including the possiollity of collysian or IMProper management overrlda of
controls, matesial misstatements dus to errar ar fraud may occu- and not ba Jerected,
Alsa, projections ot any evaluation of the nlernal Anancial contrcls ower Fimanclal
reporting 1o future pérocs are suhjecl Lo the rigk that the intemal financial contral
aver financial repartlng may beosme inddacuate betduse of changss in canditions, or
thar the degree of compliance wikh the policies or procedures may datororate,

Oplinign

In vur cpinien, the Cempany has, in all mateqa, respects, an adequiate intermal
financlal cantrols system over financial reperting and such internal financlal controle
over financiel repoarting wera operating effecrively as at March 31, 20025, based on tho
irternal contral ower fnancial reparting criteriz established by the Company
CuRskering the casential components of internal contral stated In the Guldance Motg
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cn Aucit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting 1gsued by the Institute
of Chartercd Actauntants of India.

FOR UB G & Company
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRHN: 141076W

A Gaurav J. Parekh

er

Membership No.: 140694
Mumbai, Dated: 11th April, 2025
UDIN: 253140694BMHXFW1224
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCH, 2025
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025
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NOTES T FIRANCTAL STATEMENTS FO® THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2025 - Continued
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FORBES CAMPEELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STRTEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

A, westment property

T In Thousands
Az Az or
3151 Maerch, 2025 315 March, 2074
C-l:lrl-'l:lhE!d lvestment propertes 14333 151022
Tenad 164,89 LAID 2T
Az at As of
Cost or Deemad Cost Blst March, 2005 | s Jiidd
Dafamce At beginning of year 2,548.90 133159
Additions - 61721
Eatance at end of od 2,948.90 204850
I LT LI
ted depreciation and Apaannibn H1st Mia 2025 ATst ool JO2d |
'Bulunne ot beginning of yeor 1,138.68 A5 AT
add :- DHEEHII:IrI.fIT'IhE paricd 346.29 19251
Balamce at end of period 1.4R5.07 1.338.68
Asat At
LCanryisg amourt it March, 2025 251 My, 224
Halange 31 bagnning of year 1H10.12 455 |
Afdiiong ol 151781
|EIE:|1: - .
Ceprecabion evpenso 246.29 182.52
|Balance at ened of pericd 1,453.53 1,830,232

Allal the Company s investment properties dre heid under freehald interests

4.1 Fair value measurement af 1he Campany’s investiment properties

The fair welye of the Compesy'y Ivembment properties oy ot March 31, 2005 sod & ot March 31, 2024 heyes bean arnyved at on the basis
of 3@ valaathnn faied Sl 0 2 U Pk pactive Sabed by VS Medi Aisckibed, CRamiced Englnier, an appeovisd valuer, The fair value wos
determiced based on the market comparable apcroach that meflsns receat ransacton rices Tor similar propentied o wel a5 oohwr
|ettirgy of dmilar properiies n the neighbaarhood,

in eatimeting the far value of the properties, the highest and best use of the propenies is their curnent wse.

Dreriails of the Comzany's Emmsimant propanies and infarmation abee the fair walue higranchy as a0 ¥150 erch, 2005 and 313t
March, 2074 are @ falkag:

I Fasir valua i ak
Farticulars Lewal 3 Iist March, 2025
Iﬂfﬂw Units eszatad in bestia- Pung Clly 31,300,060 J A0
[Praperty 2 $
I:_gp:rw!- "
okl 21,300.00 21,300.00
finy walue ag af
| PartiEs Lewel ¥ FISE Mo, Jidd
Cifice Linkty Fapeded i ingla- Pore Cifr 18000 90 13, 000.00
Property 2 -
Froperty 3 -
Tatal 15,000.00 19,000.00

For the office wnits located in Pune Oy, india, the f2r wlue was derived using the market omearabie approach based on recent
market prices without any significant adjzsments being made o the market observable daga
4.2 Note an Investment property direct expenses incuded in other sxpenses:-:
T In Thousands

Yoar anded Yar gnoked
3=k March, 2025 A1t Adarch, 2024

Direct operating expenses arking from investment property that gengrated
mantal incame during the yoaar 4750 4750
_ Direct cperating expenses anzing from imvestment property that @id mo

* generate rental Income during the year . 2
{ Taxal 4755 4550
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
MICTES TO FE4ANIRAL STATERENTS FO® THE YEAR ENDED 15T RAAREH, THEE - Cantinued

Moa Current nvadments
5. InvmEment n wend shes o 00at T i Thadising
AL As st
— T SstMmmch gore
e —_— Amsumi ) Amoust
Ungcohed lnvenresni [l fully gaidi
B Eqaiy Wrinamesnn
L Expeity shares of ¥ b0 edeh in Folbas Techacdya Lid. | Baler Hote 1) - - IR ALY
TOTAL ACMERETE OF LMILOTED IVESTMENTS [/ . o 2T 8% I 515 55
Agprugats I =uinw al kvssnrraria [} " TSRS ES
TOTAL IMVESTRAENTE [4] - (1) ey £ T —
0 Perdprree Hiwrer
5, &% Mos-cumudilhie Hon-Cormeerible Hedssmabla Prafersace Sharas
IHCAPSIof § 13 each in Fortess Technouws Lg. (iafer Hode ) = i AR MHAFE
TOTAL EREEATE OF UPaOTED INVESTHVIZNTS (8] - - LT EoLE
Agprogiic armeur of rep few o i - LT
TOTaL mESTMESTS [8) - {8} W, -
A, Fwedrment i ol venlune af cose ¥ i Thousands:
Aia a1 af
st Sanch, FIIE Fiat Adosck, oad
parirelary F] AianL any Amsanl
I tgint weniuee company
L sl bswerreains fad Puily pakil
gy iliumeits
1 Eguity shares el T 10 sach in ferbes Aemi Armoads Lid PESE HIRRAE 2 FRALE &0
TOTAL, ARSAFGRTE OF URIHIITED WWESTRERTS (4] LECYm A ELAT -LE_T' T35 o0
Aggi el avaes £ Lol brgarire in eshus ol e stmens (M - "
TOTAL INVESTWERTS (4] - (] AT FEOE 0
T, Db Weemaens
1A, Dwbar Mo Cuiran! e bmants Tin Thausands
st A o
Eim Maih, WL Sldat lorh, 2034
PRt hars Ay Amsuni ! aiy AT
i inwvstmeis
n i fmidully padd] ok fsb valen theaagh OO0
I Helidng Cedepany
Cgodip ndrumanic
b oy wuesi of T 10 gk i FRiled & Comaery id b L L 1SR MRS
TOTAL AGEEGATE OF UOTED IMVESTHIEIRTS (4] i R LT
¥ Oecesd insevmeanng (30 fally ga kil anrads vibig theoagh O
in Talbra aubiidiany
[0 PR T TR S
L. Exusty sheres of I 33 nach in Poreka Forbanibd. 1K XN TR ] i s Ay ETFETIE")
TOTAL &GGARRATE OF [LUNTED INVESTRENTS (4] of BEaa EAR Al
i Chiwted Sracitrends |l fully paid] of ek valog throags 00
18 Pl i A i i vy
Exporfiy Irorinurmnis
L Faidty shired o ¥ 53 gach in Ezgh ard Machire PardnLid |
Pt Ty’ Pl 31 [ BGATESE - '
TOTAL RLEADEETL OF GUOTED IWWESTENTS [Al TR -
TOTAL SENEGRATE OF CHHITED IETESTRENTS [14 0+ 59 B,4T,037. (AR
T — T
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b Oiher Men Durieat isvemmests T i Thausanss
A5 A gt
st Mgarh, BTG Az plarch, 2004
Pl Lty Amount oy Araudl
Usnuzbed Irse gty
TH.  Unquescsd lssscmaact [of fully paid] o felrvabas theasgh AR L
Ie ther ennaien
Frprcy Incridnnn
L Equtyakeres =f €10 aach in The Smcebi f e Oz, L LIRS 1 AR L e I9452 850
3 [quieyaksme=l ¥ 33 sach in Farber [darmeriny L2d [3nisr Keis | Balos] LS. 1845818 1 3% £
% Eqeitydbires of T L0 gich i Ferbes Tech ey L. (Beler Kote 3] 238.96 151555 - =
FiTAL SEOREGATE UnGUGTEL IRAENIIASNTS o) AT AR
FOTAL ETTPENTY Lo &) = [B ATkl . _ Sroangy
‘Leas » Agyregaie armavrk al Imzabneni b vakie o verinarin o) LT Irasrr
Tl L MR ETRA R TS Gl A - o I.I:I'dll'm 8811071
Bt # ket vkt oF gioted leseilreersi AT 1205 fkdijn i
IC Preferenie shaes.
L N Mon-toitmleife Hos-Conmeeitible Aedeomatis Prelerence Shames
PMCAPSf ¥ 10 mach bt Fobees Teilviidys Lol (Relar Hote 3] L3740 1% x s
PO A00EEGaTY OF UROUDTED IRESTRADNTS (1) LT AD B FE - .
preger i I juw af imemriTeerss (B g e a
TOTRL HRVESTRA BT ) - il — -
Caftmpa rpevelsn ot pr bvpifrrety = on gy ired 5% 009 chim botien T in Trausanis
g a Adal
Faitheil i Jim Mardh, 025 Snar Adarck, Aood
Firiasdal asiets cimed o1 o wilug Wherough praf® or boar [FYTPL)
Entp bilnireent ML IT k1 b
Lapatstrmparreart iv vebsn of bremirsanhy AT IT ol B
1]
Fhiasrial Rrisld mveasaed o1 FUTE by b i aryaty |
FRikTy Feirarsang BAp EET.ES L ERE R
LiT s (R EEL 1N T

Farbaa Ldumatry Lreted, o schaifiany, hac bl ibed wlurdang seding o uivkei sectioe SO0 ad ol appisalde seibwm of the Cormpa oo Rt 2008
Comusguenty, te Company dast nal haws any AERERanD inFodtig 67 caeliod deei Ferlesl Efurmetny Lested goed Thealase @ i eing reclisided from subeidiesy 1o o
dranrimesTl. Furthes, Ipsscnmeimd (o b Fbeed Ediivai Ty | vt s Tl gipmalil

A Sibaies of Ainagesss) [Sakeis’t B prenasted b Sectias 183 inad wwlh Saclkn 292 ard other L of tha B, SO mad he e sl
angilatbens ade thrsisle b deseipe of the Brinesgied Lindetiling (horsiza ber delirad) bom Fobo & Comnpesy Uinkad into Fobsa Precision Tooh sed Sdasre Fng
et o8 ol ST e I S piiiaTl Beie a1 weH dieif dietetiono § mead (e e, §a med b appreeed or impooed o daschad by Riatlonasd Corepany L Tribisul
FHOTY

Wasn coming Pric ofect of teScheme and in considerstian for Tervanger of Domanped UaSeraking of the Devesged Corspary bt the Reiultiag Doy, the Sasaling
Corrpars ihul, slbouk any feriber sppiortian or deed, Doue and szt equiny shem of e welue Qe DO saxch, coedine ac ully paid o, 5o & Tae aquny thaschakers af tha
Dwrrmrped Compsny whoss names spoas in tw regizisr ol manssn of te Demepsd Comgarg 8 onibe Recond Duss o 13 TesT redpeitiey b b Eebubind, sdminkitraion or
alter lap” reprereniriiven or T8 grcos mor-n-oils, 5o The cne oy ke, nibe follzadng praseriion

A [Feasry Fally paid g wimary shaies of 35 B0 samh @l the Readling Campany sbal b hed ared alaied bo tha eguity - aof Tha O Cormpary v asarp o
Pty prnded Lig £ by A BaTeE o R, 1O sl Pl By T8 B TR Chereighd Covvmany' & on The Seoas] Dite

19 regpe® of Fowbors Tiathwerins Lisstad FTLL Tha Alstbasy Commpary Line Trigursd, Whambal Sanck W07, vida fin order clebad Warch 34, 2009, has sdovrisd the patiion ed by
FIL. wifer Sarrhons 10 ol thet i il Barhrupley Comde, 5108 | 92 Code™), read with Eve lambvency ard Barkrepicy (ippliossizr by Adiudization Ratherind Bided NI06. L4 o
vurjad] rhe Coperale leaviag ey B bl Pemopm 000 far nene i Eag Frod LT saiith & Fart Frere 2u Bale of e Do
Cargegaafilly, The rardgniniol asd paeers of the Boird of Daectass of FTL am saw dumze rded mad wiil be sanrand iy the IUF for e Suratias of the CIRF,

The Corrpaerry dzar eoi ey seg 1igradoart inllosacs or corired canr Forbie Tovhecsst Livised Siad tharabend & bbby sl il froe e el b Furthes,
IrsmszTarva mede in Forbaa Techraay Urniad sow Fully prosidesd.
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

g. Trade recehablas

Trade receivables- Current

T in Thousands

Page 98 of 155

As at Az ot
Farticulars 315t March, 2025 3Tt Merrch, 2024
Tradae recelvables
a)  Considered Good- Billed =
b)  Considered Good- unbilled -
¢ Related Parties 68,70
Loss; Allowance for doubitful dabts - -
Total 8. 70
Trade raceivatiles- Ageing schedls Ais at Az ar
Ranpe of Ofs period 31sk March, 2025 A1t Morerh, 2024
Undisputed Trade receivables:
Linbillled =
Mot Due -
Lags than & months G870
& manths - 1 year :
I-1 years -
2-3 yeard -
3 years .
Total [
. Loans § Advancas
LT Loans J/ Advances - Non Current T Im Thoutands
Az at As i
Particulars AlskMarch, 2035  Fist March, 2024
2  Loand and advances to others
- Comzidered Gond = .
« Disputed 3,953 395 395348
L5 Allcsance for douboful stvances 39534595 3'.55,:1'.35
Toasd | & ) . =




FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

8H Loans / Advances - Current £ in Thaoutands
Az at A8 ot
Particulars 315t March, 2075 Alst Moreh, 2024
al Inter-Carporate Deposits
- Unsspured, considened good - -
- Doubtiul (Refer note 3 of Schedule 7 " Other Investment”) 45, 00000 45, .00
L=ss : Allewance for bad and dowbtful loans 45, 00000 45, 00,00
Toral = -
Detadls of bans and advances in nature of leans granted o promoters, direcions, key managerial persannel,
Asal Aol
Particudars 3154 Parch, 2025 it March, 2024
al amaunts repayable on demand
Prosmaoters
- Directoes - -
Koy Managerial Parsarmel -
= Other related parties - =
b}  without specifving any tarms or paried of repayment
- Promoters - -
Diiractors -
Key Managerial Persanmel -
- Cither related parties - 45,000 0
Tl - 45, 0000
10. Oiher financial assets
1. Oiher financial assets - Non current ¥ in Thousands
s at Agat
Particulars Fist March, 2025  31sr Morch, 2004
al  Sexurity deposits
- Ungecured, conssdenad good 10U ipoa
= Douhbtful .00 [.o0
Less : Allowanos far bad and doubitful loans 300 8.0
Tatal 2000 J10.00
108,  Other financial aszets - Current ¢ in Thousands
A at As ot
Particulars 31st March, 2025  Jist March, 2024
a}  Accruals:
il Irterest sccrued on deposits with bank -
[i] Inberest secrued on Loan green - Daubtful {Refer note 3 of Schedide 7
"Othar Irvastment”| 1,781 TE L7E3FE
Less : Allowance for bad ard doubihi loans 17837k 178378

Total [a)
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

11, Cash and cash eguivalents

For the purpodes of the staterment of cash flows, cath and cash equivalants include cash on hand and Im banks, et of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Cazh and cash equivalaints 5t the end of the reporting period 25 shown i the statement of cash
flows can ba reconcilad to the related tems in tha balance sheet as follows:

T in Thousands

As at Az ol
Particulars AistMarch, 2025 3215 March, 2024
114, Balances with Banks
g} In eurrent scoounts H3Z 32 I1.439.54
by} Depasits aceourmd [with ariginal maturity uptas 3 manths] 150349 83 2
15,3?1.“ 1433 54
11E. Other Bank Balances
In depasit accounts with origina? maturity of more than 3 months but leis
than 12 manths, depedited with AXS Bank. 1,022,773 1831570
Cash and cash equivadents as per balanoe sheet 15,894.59 15,585 24
| — s o e
1. Other assets
Other assals - Corrent ¥ In Thousands
AE 5t As gt
Particalars FIist March, 2025 Flst March, 2029
al  Advances for supply of poods and servipss
- Unsecured, considered goad - -
= Deubthd - a9
Less o Allovanca for doubiful advanoes - .89
Tatsl N o
1
sa7ew |
FaW .I
P
oy I .'.-n'
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Cowtinwed

13, Equity Share Capital

¥ in Thewsends
A Azar

Partioslpry Rt March, D135 Aanr Lfoech, A
En iy shares of € 10. sach 3B 58131 864131
Tokal w ELE NN
Fusthorised Sharn capital :
45,124,200 Tully paid aguity sharas al¥ 10 eack Ak, 14300 An 142 08
Wewund Sl wulis ol o eapine] coamprieee
3B 54 L3 Tully aard oguivy sharas alT 10each
(Prawvioks w7 38 64 134} BE,641.31 A8644.31
gﬁﬁ-:l.!:l. 55-11.31
13. 1 Fully paid sguity shans
Mumnber of thares Share capital
Particilary [inThousand }  Fin Thoussnds
Balince a1 Masch 3L, 203 3.E54.13 HE4L.5L
Fbis il TS . .
Balancr at March 5 5534 31, B84.13 38 fa1 B
P rrimity 1 "
Balunce at March 51_ 5335 3, B64.1% [T

Fully paid equity shane, whiss hrve o par v lae off 200, corny ome vobe per d8are snd camy a ight 1o dividends

13, ¥ Detads of shares hald by the holding comgany, the ultimare castrolling pary, Their subsida i and asecas

Fualby paied or dimamy s hares
B

i al

Perticular Slut i rch, 21028 st Movrnk Jidd
Rafance ak the bagloning of the padod ARAL1T TERLT
The haolsing compamy - v
Tagal 385113 3858 51

1% 3 Dirtails of shares held by each shareholdar halding mans thas 5% dhares
Axak Arpt
11t A rch, 225 Alet Sdavoh, 124
flursbier of Shiants e hiokdirgg in ETe Pasmibaer o  Rokcbng Ay the

Pariloudar held claas of shanm aheras hinkd shaie of sbores
Fully paid equity shares
Forbas & Company Umited 385403 108.08 385413 BOG00
Tatal 1.FG4.13 A0S0 ard1 TG00
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

14. Other eguity
¥in Thousands
A5 et Az af
Particulars 315t March, 2025 JLst March, 2024
al Armalgamation resense 204.06 204065
5| SELUritses pramium reserne 3.00,071.70 F .70
c| Reserse for equity Instramants through other
comprahersive income 11.88,957.48 1311357602
d] Retained eamings {7,97,093.89] (78 116.91)
2] Capital redempiion resene T,500.00 7. 500,00
f] Equity Component in Bebentures issued 48,277.53 48.2TF 63
Taoital 747.91698 &.F1.512.50
Tin Thousanis
g at Az ar
Particulars 315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024
14.1 Amalgamation resarse
Balance at beginning of the yoar 104.06 .06
Mowemants H -
Balapoe at end of 1he period 204,06 204.08
14.2 Securities premium resarse
Balance at beginning of the year 3.00.071.70 Aanr
avements - -
Balarce at end of the period ¥, 00,0780 0007170
14.3 Reserve for eguity indtruments through other
camprehensive income
Ralance at beginning of year 11,13,576.02 i 5a, Fag gt
Ner fair value gain { {loss] on iveestments in @EUiTy INsruments
at FYTaCl 75,381.46 1382740
Balance at and of the period 11.88,957.48 11,13,576.02
14.4 Retained carmings
Bslance at b=ginning of yuar {7.98,116.95] (%39, 468 57}
Prafit f (oss) attributable to owners of the Company 1.023.02 3008
Balance at and of tha period 17.97.093.89) 798 11591)
14.5 Capital redemption resenme
Balance at beginming of the year 7500000 L5000
Movernenis . .
Balance at end of the period 7,500.00 e e
14,6 Equity Component in Debentures issued
Balance at beginning of the year 18, X77.63 A5 27763
Miovamsnts . -
Balance ¥ end of the period 48 277.63 4R.277 53
Totad 747, 916.98 B 51250
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

15. Deferred fan balances

Thia fedlgewing 16 tha arabyss of detarnnd i &seesTobiisies] praseoned inhe befanoe sheet;

Farticulars 3dst March, 2005 it forrch, 2074

Disfursad [Rn oAty % >

[pefierred tan Bahilties 1,08,344.B0 -

Mt 1,08,344.86 -

18. Trade payables
Tin Thiusands
A ot As at

Particulars 31st hisrch, 2025 Afsd Mearch, XM

Miore and small enterprises . -
Others 566§ 16275
Tatad 56,65 16375

—

Fayabde 1o Micro and Small Enterprises represents the principal amount. There is no interest due £ acorued |/ paid J payabde during the
year. The figures for the year ending 31 March, 2035 have beon dezarmined to the febent such pamies have been ddestified an the
Basis ol infermation collactad by the Masagamant, This Bag been raliad igos by T auditars

The Company has finandal risk mamagement polides n plaoe to erewre thak all payables aro paid within the pre-agnesd cradi berrm.

Trasde Bawabln Agcing Schadwle % in Thousands
Asat Ag ot
Ramge of 0js period 318t March, 2025 314t March, 2024
Unbiled & ¥
Heet dus: . 2
Less than 1 year LEA JE3.7E
1-3 yar - 5
22 woar A
=3 R b -
Tatal 86,65 15375
17. Current tax azsels and fabdlities
T in Thinusanods
Ag &t A=z af

Ast March, 2025 st March, 2024

Curmeml tax sty
Tar refund recelsakble

Carrimt Gax Fabilities
Income tex payabie

Corrent Tes Asaels (ourrent portion)
Ciarvent Tas AssEts (nan-curnent portion)
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED

MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

1E. Hevaeras from operations

T In Thowsands

Year ended ¥eor enmded

Particulars 315t March, 2025 3158 March, 2024
al  Operating revenues
il Rt ard amenitiss 945 00 FIR 33
Total BE5.00 FEIEE]
19, Other Income

T in Thousands

Year andad ¥eor endled
Particulars 315t Warch, 2025  31srAarch, 1024

Interast income earmed an financial assets that aro not designated at fair

walum thraugh profit or boss:
al Intenest Income

il Bank depodits
il Incarmes Tas refund
Toral {aj
B}  Other Non-Operating Income
1j others
Credit badances [/ escess pravision written back

Total (k)
Tagal (a+bj

20. Depreciation and amortisation expense

105174 92479
L&7 2576
1,053,651 40 55
9,00

- 5,00
1,053,651 945 55

7 In Thouwsands

Year ended Yoor ended
Particulars 31t March, 2025 SIst March, 2024
i Depraciation of Ewvestrent propany 346.35 182.52
1] Depreciation. Furaiture and Fatures & Office Equipment 145.85 B
Tatal [ ELY FEI 55
XL
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 - Continued

21 A, Other expenses
T in Thousands

Year ended ¥ear encleg
Partlculars 315t March, 2025  3ist Miarch, 2024
al Repairsto:
1 Bauildings 1880 2880
i Oksery - .
1550 2B
Rares and tames (excluding Tases on inComa) 5925 162
Legal and professices charges B2 85 5227
Provision for doubiful inans and advances 3 059
Hrector Siiting Faes TR00 10000
Miscellaneaus cupenses 193 385
Tatal [2] TH0UES 26743
B} Audit Fees
i Farstatuiory awdit FL3) 4180
il Farather servioes 4770 LR
Tirtal (b BE.50 P4 AT
Total {z+h) 51533 3€1.83
22, Incomie Laa=s TH-HI.-I'I-E to operalions
2.1 income tak recognised in profit or loss
Bin Thousands
Year ended ¥ear ended
Particulars 31st March, 2025 Bistﬂ'ln'-rcht 2024
Current tax
In respesct of the cunment year 184 00 13300
Ir Fes il &l priar yes (009 [21.5&)
163.91 111.44
Deferred tax
Total income tax expenie recagnised in the current year relsting to
eantinuEng Dperatiang 16391 21144
22.7 Imcosme tan lEl:I!‘nleﬂ in othar Wﬂ!m [el=
Othicrs
Deferred tax
Met fair value gain on imastments i equity shares at FUTOC 1,08 343 8E)
Totad income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (8+8]) E,H,.!-H--iﬁ-]
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

23. Earnings per share
Year ended Yoar endesd
Particulars 315t March, 2025 Fist Morch, 2024
T per share T per share
Basic earnings per share 0.}6 0.2
Diluted earnings per share 0.26 .34
23.1. Eamings per share | EPS)
Year ended Year ended
Farticulars 315t March, 2025 | i Morch, 2024
Profief loss) Tor the year attributable to owners of the Company
{in thouzand} (A} 1,023.02 430.06
Waighted average number of eguity shares for the purposes of basic
carmings per share (OQuantity thausand in ﬂumbcrst -|E;| 3 864.13 380413
Basic and Diluted Em per share {Mﬂ} 026 23
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

2. Contingent Rabilities

Tin Thousands
Asg gk Ag g3t
Particulars 31t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2004
Incama Tax mattens in dispute under appeal 31,5440 38 21,540.29
Sales Tax Demands by the Madhya Pradech Sales Tax Autharities far the
year 1097-9E, 1958-959 and 1969-00. 1,005,008 100808

25, Dperating Lezoe: Company as ledsor
The compary has ghean the licensed premises on operating leass bais, the details of which ahe a4 followa!

T in Thousands
a5 at Az ot
Class of Asget 315t March, 2025 | It Mareh, 2024
Gross nrn,l'inE Amaunt 2.94E.9] AL
Accumulated Dearesation 1,485.07 1, 138 50
Depreciation for the year 306,340 19251
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

26. [a} Related party disclosures
Current ¥ear
{a) Name of the Related Partles and Description of Relationship:

Nature of Relationship Mame of entity Abbreviation used
Uitimate Holding Company | Shapaari Pallonji and Comparny Private Lirnited SPCL
Hobding Company Forbes 8 Company Limitad FRCL
Fallow Subsidiaries Forbes Technosys Umited (up to 2403, 2025) FTL
iwhere there are !ran:u‘tinn:!l Farbes Precision Toals and Machine Parts Limited FPTMEPL
Joint Venture Forbes Bumi Armada Limited FREAL
Previous Year
MNature of Relationship Name of entity Abbreviation used
Litirmate Holding E.'ﬂmppn].rl.l" Shapoarji Pallonii and Comipany Frivete Limited SR
Haldimg Company Forbes & Company Limited F&CL
Fellow Subsidiaries Forbes Technosys Limited Fri
fwhere there ore transoctions) Fories Precision Topls grd Mochine Parts Limited FETMPL
Joint Verture Forbes Bumi Armegso Limited FEal
N
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FORBES CAMPBELL FINANCE LIMITED
WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continund
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING AND SERVICES LIMITED

(a wholly owned Subsidiary Company)

Financial Statements

For the Year ended March 31, 2025
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MS KA & CO .
Chamasd Accoumiangs , % |
408, ManishChambers,

Sanawala Road,

Above Axls Bank,

Goregoan (E),

Mumbai - 400 063,
India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members of
VOILKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

(“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31® March 2025 and the statement of profit
and loss for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit and Its cash flows for the
yaar ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
mdependent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics lssued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for
our opinion.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors s responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the anmual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Page 116 of 155 ROy



MS KA &Co.

@ | Chaiered Accosmanis

Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, In doing so, consider whether the other information Is materally Inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directers is responsible for the matters stated In sectlon 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 203 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
falr view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accerdance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indla, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financlal controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financlal statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going coencern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors elther intends to liguidate the
Company or Lo cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
Includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arlse from fraud or error and are considered material if, Individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Mumbai Offlce: 408, Manish Chambers, Sonawala Road, Dpp. Hotel Baran Palace, Goregaan (E), I.lumh:.'i 400 D63,
= E- mail: 1himlhnh'-rirhi--|mull com.
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As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the finandial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, deslgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may inveolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of Intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal finandial controls system In place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abllity to continue as a going
concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In
our auditer's report to the related disclosures In the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of cur auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
mternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

Mumbaj Office: 408, Manish Chambers, Sonawala Road, Opp. Hotel Karam Palace, Goregoan (E}, Mumbai - 400 053,
* E- mafil: 1k-grnuhe:l1wn1&gmlli o,
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determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report As required by Section 197{16) of the Act, we
report that the Company has paid remuneration to its director during the vear in accordance with
the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedula V to the Act.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of Indiain terms of sub-saction (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure AY, astatement on the matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicabe.

3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In cur opinion, proper beoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as It appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financlal statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on :1** March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) Since the Company’s tumover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50 Crores
and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is less than
Rs.25 Crores, the Company IS exempted from getting an audit opinfon with respect to the
adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would Impact its financial
statements;

Mumbal Offlce; 408, Manlsh Chambers, Senawale Road, Opp, Hotel Karan Palace, Goeregean (E), Mumbal - 400 063,
& E- mallt 1kgmaheshwar] @Bgmail.cam, B
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i The Company did not have any long-term contracts including darivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

fii. There hasbeenno delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trall
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not
came across any instance of the audit trall feature belng tampered with. Additionally, the
audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

For and on behalf of
MSKA & Co.,
Chartered Accourtants
Firm Registration No. 11i7035W LA B ,

a I Maheshwari i
Partner S——
Membership No. 048555
UDIN No.: 25048555BMMEVUGOS3
Place: Mumbai
Dated: 11/04/2025

Mumbal Office: 408, Mmanfsh Chambers, Senawala Road, Opp. Hotel Haran Palace, Goregoan (L), Mumbai - 400 063,
w E- mall: 1hgmaheshwari@gmall,com,
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

Repart on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause [I) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Volkart Fleming Shipping &
Services Limited [“the Company’| as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibifity for intermnal Finandal Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal finandial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial
Controls over Financlal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Fnancial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
Including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compileteness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of refilable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nate on Audit
of Imtemal Financial Controls Owver Financial Reporting (the *Guidance Note*) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applcable to an audit of intermal financial contrals, both applicable to an audit of Intemal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirerments and plan and perform the audit
o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeqguate Intermal linancial comrols over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Cur audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
linancial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness,

Cur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtalning an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contral based on the assessed
risk- The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstaterment of the financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s intermal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's internal
financial control over inanclal reporting includes those policies and proceduras that

Mumbal Offlcer 408, Manish Chambers, Sonawala Road, Opp, Hotel Karan Palace, Goregoan (E), Mumbai - 400 063.
& E- mall: 1kgmaheshwari@gmall.cam, :
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{!] Perlain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detall, accurately and fairly refiect the
ransactlons and cispositions of the assets of the company;

{2] provide reasonable assurance that transaciions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expendiiures of the company are being made only In accordance with authorizations of
management and directars of the company; and

(3} Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or limely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, ar disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect aon the inancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repaorting

Because of the inherent fimitations of internal finandal controls over financial reporting, including the
possibdilty of collusion or iImproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaiuation of the internal financial
controis over financial reporting o future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinlon, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal financlal controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of internal Financial Controls Owver Finandal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India

For and on behalf of
MSKA & Co.,

Chartered Accountants n;' ’,r_ s
Firm Registration No. 11?u-35w o
a Gopal Maheshwari

Fartner
Membership No. 048555
UDIN No.: 25048555BMMKVUG953

Flace: Mumbai
Dated: 11/04/2025

,5. i

Mumbal Offlce: 408, Manish Chambers, Senawala Road, Opp. Hotel Haran Pelace, Goregoan (E], Mumbai - 400 D63,
= E- mall: 1kgmaheshwari@gmail.com.
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Annesure — B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: Us3090MH 1920PLCO00B0E
Year Ended: 31st March, 2025

The Annexure referred to In Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025, we report that:

(1) {a){(A) The company maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and situation of Property, Flant and Equipment;

(@)(B) The company Is not having any Intangible assets; hence this clause is not applicable;

(b}  All the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and there is a regular pmgrérn me of verification which, In our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancles were noticed on such verification;

(c} Al the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(d)  The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use of
assets) or intangible asset of both during the financial year;

{(e)  Thereisno any proceeding have been initiated or pending against company for holding any
Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1088 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

(i) (@) physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and whether, in the opinion of the auditor, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate; whether any discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed and if so, whether they have been properly
dealt with in the books of account

(B2) Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institution
on the basis of security of current assets during the financial.

Mumbai Office: 408, Manizh Chambers, fonawale Road, Opp, Hatel Karan Palace, Goregoan (E), Mumbai-- 400 Dai.
o E- mail: Tkgmahashwari@gmail.com. Bl Ty L)
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(iil)  (a) In our opinion and according to the information provided to us the company has made
investments and provided guarantees and granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of
loans as specified below:

(&)  ToSubsidiares, Joint Ventures, Associates: (Amount in Rs.)

Nature Aggregale amourt during the | Balance ofs as on $1.03.2025
year 31.03.2025
NA NIL NIL J

(B)  Toother than Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Assodiates:(Amount in Rs.)

| Nature Agpregate amount duﬁg the | Balance ofs as on 31.03.2025 '

| year 31.03.2025

I -

MA, MIL MIL

(b}  Theterms and conditions of investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances In the nature of loans and guarantees
provided are not prejudicial to the Interest of the company.

(c] In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has not been stipulated and the repayments or recelpts are regular.

(d)  The amount s not overdue, on the above loan and advances; hence this dause is not applicable;

(e}  Theamount is not overdue; on the above loan and advances; hence this dause is not applicable;

(f}  Thecompany has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or

without specifying any terms or perlod of repayment. Details of the said loan or advances Is as follows:

{Amount in Rs.)

Aggregate Amount during the year | ¥ to the total loans granted Uush?ﬂralance 31fo3/z025

NA NIL NIL i

Mumbal Offlce: 408, Manish Chambars, Senawals Road, Opp. Hotel KEaran Palece, Goregoan (£], Mambai - 400.063.

® E- mall: 1kgmaheshwari@gmail.cam, -
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Aggregate amount of loan granted to Promoters

(Amount in Rs.}

Aggregate Amount during the year | % to the total loans granted | Closing Balance 31/03/2015

M4, MNIL MIL

| B Y

Apgregate amount of loan granted to Related Partles

Aggregate Amount during the year | % to the total loans granted | Closing Balance 34/03/2024

NIL NIL

(W)  The company has provided following mentioned corporate guarantees within the meaning of
section 185 &186 of the Companies Act, 2013-

(vl  The Company has not accepted any deposits or amount which is deemed to be deposits from the
publle,

(vi)  The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1)
of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted | accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, G5T, value added tax, duty of
customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues if applicable have been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
the Company did not have any dues on account duty of excise.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the companies
examined by us, there are no disputed dues of G5T, income tax, custom duty, service tax, wealth
tax, Value added tax, excise duty and cess which have not been deposited.

(viil} The company has not recorded any transactions in the books of account which have been
surrendered of disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961. The previouslyunrecorded income has been properly recorded in the books of account
during the vear.

Mumbai Offlce: 408, Manish Chambers, Senawale Road, Dpp. Hotel Haran Palace, Goaregcan (E), Humhm -tlfln 0al.
= E- mall: 1hgmahashwari@gmail.caom. =
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(ix) (@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender; hence this clause is not applicable;

(b)  The company has not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender, hence this clause Is not applicable;

{c)  The company has not obtained any term loan; hence this clause is not applicable;
(d)  The company has not raised any short term fund; hence this clause is not applicable;

(e}  The company has not taken any any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures; hence this clause is not

applicable;

(f The company has not raised company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or assoclate companies; hance this clause is not

applicable

(x}  (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments); hence this clause is not applicable;

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partfally or optionally convertible) during the year; hence this dlause
Is not applicable.

(xl}  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

(b) Mo report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government; hence this clause is not applicable.

(x)  (a) The Company is not a Nidhi Company hence compliance of Met Owned Funds to Deposits in the
ratio of 1: 20 to meet out the liability is not applicable to the company;

(b}  The Company is not a Nidhi Company hence maintaining ten percent unencumbered term deposits
as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out the liability is not applicable to the company:

(c)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company hence this clause is not applicable to the company.

Mumbal Office: 408, Manish Chambers, Senawala Road, Opp. Hotel Haran Falace, Goregoan (E), Hl.irnhul -'lnl:l-ﬂ‘ﬁi-
& E- mall: ltgmahemﬂrm:mlll com. :
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(xiify According to the Information and explanation given to us and based on the our examination of the
records of the company, all transactions with the related parties-are In compliance with sections
177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statemnents, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv} (a) The Central Government has not prescribed to appoint internal auditor under section 138 of
the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company;

(b) This clause is not applicable to the company

(xv] According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him as restricted in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013; hence this
clause Is not applicable

(xvi) (2) The Company is not required to be registered under section 4544 of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934.

(b)  TheCompany is not has conducted any Non-Banking Financlal or Housing Finance activities;
hence this clause Is not applicable,

(¢}  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of Indig; hence this clause s not applicable.

(d)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of Indla.

The Group has five CICs which are part of the Group

- 5P Finance Private Limited,

- 5C Finance and Investments Private Limited,

- Hermes Commerce Private Limited,

- Renaissance Commerce Private Limited and

- Shapoorji Pallonji Energy Private Limited (formarly known as Shapooriji Pallonji Oil and Gas
Private Limited).

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial yvear and in the immediately.
(xwvill} There is no resignation of statutory auditors during the year; hence this clause Is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company and financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial labilities, other information accompanying the finandal
statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we were

Mumbal Office: 408, Manish Chamber:, Sonawala Road, Gpp, Hotel Haran Palace, Goregoan (E), Mumbad - dj}_l}_us_.;_,

& E- mall: ‘Ii:gmll'l-t;hﬂ'l.rl@gmall COm. h
i
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in the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report. There was no
any liability in the books of the company for those payable within one year from the date of
balance sheet date,

{xx) (a) The company has not any other than ongoing projects, therefore provision of section 135 of
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company;

{b) This clause Is not applicable to the company.

(xxf) There are no any qualifications or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports, hence this clause s not applicable to the
company.

For and on behalf of

MSKA & Co.,

Chartered Accountants e r—
Firm Registration No. ni7o35W ._-1:__:{- LR

A
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Krishna G Maheshwari
Partner

Membership No. 048555

LIDIN Mo.: 25048555BMMKVUG953
Place: Mumbai

Dated: n/o4/z025

Mumbai Office: 408, Mapish Chambers, Sonawals Road, Dpp. Hotel Karan Palace, Goregoan (E), Mumbal - 400 063,
= E- mail: 1kgmabheshwari@gmail.com.
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2025
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MANCH, 2025

Yinar nnded Feor andeg
313 Mlarch, @5 IR Mzech, 2028
#ln 'I'hq.u.u_n_d-s £ in Toiseano

Cash Thowi From cperating aopsssy
Profs | flos) belors tan 19,7321 Bz an
il ity dpr -

Firgnoe coy recognscd n prole or ko 3538 |

e ialssn on fead soen 51,38 5739

Irtaregl e |m|.:|& [fa421)

HRSTE) (A3

Operasing profil | |kasg) berlors wosiing cagital chacges 19,135, 0 FdTid0
P iy on workg capinl:

ectume ' [norease}in (ride receivelizey wd over lnarci simsts . -

(FreTws e | e iease b aibar g BER ] Lt E ]

Irncrapes ! (decnaie] n trads pyslves and obher nacchd | sSlies 434, 1m aMas

Irreie [ idec mane] 51 s babdite AL EEEE

1TETS Jaed Fn)

Tah gederabed lrom f Jiaed |6 speratiam TS AT =TT

Imporma exod € podil e of refunc| 14,354 () fa 321
| Wen ciah pramraed fren [ bused in| opmraing sositin [T E551.04
Cank Moren bram laweiting stdtiac

Froges i from e sumendes for buyshieck of img-naem it L =

Irfmrant e 39,19 arear

Bank bl ance ran conddered sz cath nd cash equivalen i T -
bl Mt cath genersted fram ! ued i) inomting actisities THAL #2d 14
Cacth Aoswsi drrem Sira rclng 3ctis R

Parymant of Lot Lnbabim {15305 et ]

it paid (L {2 54
fr] Men cish geawsing from [ Qused in) Snascing aoihbie [LAE.£F) 000
Dd} Mex lacrsape |/ |datreusie) in conk ared gl mquivaieniy (s + s 18, 34700 Amras
(=] Cash pnif cask oxahanlanss 05 3% the sarmmencemend ol the s HaraT 5 SIROT
T Caak snd cash eipibaabents dn ok the snd of i i IR L ET) TR

——

h%ﬂ-hﬂqﬁuimhdﬂdm 0o 33

As peir cur report of geen dide

Fiad il 5 AL & o SUTHER WK LRE

Chargired A-coemjnns

Flrm Rl M- 11 ey

MIAMAL JAGR AT
A=) -
LT T
W f:_ A & 5, MLIPA, KHANNA
Minashwa e o

Pariner |':'l'. r"I'-'v.' Ma 'Fr \

Mesbership Mo MBS [fead 71 DSy '-||

Mumial, 11tk apny 2025 Uz e g Myt 11 Aant 2005

e P i
% !

Page 131 of 155



VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Coantinued

statement of changes in equity for the year ended 315t March, 2025

A, Equity share capltal MNo.of Shares Amount

¥ In Thousands
Balance at 1st April, 2023 5039 5,038.50
Changes In equity share capital during
the year
Balance at 31st Mareh, 2024 S0.3% 5,038,50
Changes in equity share capital during
Tha ywear 3
Balance at 31st March, 2035 50.39 5.038.50
B. Other Equlty

¥ in Thousands
T
Reserves and surplus ki Oty
Eqquity
Genaral Capital Redemption
talned
R Reta earnings Riitiasvie
Balance at 1st April, 2023 700481 B.066.95 2,961.50 18,033.26
Profit/{lass) for the vear . 3,485 38 - 5485 38
Balamce at 315t March, 2024 7.004.81 13,552.33 2,551.50 23,518.54
Profitf{less) for the year - 15, 764,97 - 15,764.97
Balance at 315t March, 2025 '.l'..m-ll.-.-sl 29.317.30 2,961.50 39,283,561
—

See accompanying notes farming part of the financial staterments 1to 33

hs per our report of even date

For M S K AR Ca. SLIDHIE WAKURE
Chartered Accountants ey
Firm Reg No.- 117035W P e & -
|~ CFRN g, P NIRMAL JAGAWAT '-.----sl
{54 71 Pl | '
< STapeute RUPA KHANNA @ﬁ"ﬁ—-—-—
Krizhna Gapal Maheshwari
Partner

tembership Ma.: 04ES55

Mumbai, 11th April, 2025 Mumbal, 11th April, 2025

Page 132 of 155

™ Directors




VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
FROTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR DNDED 315T MARCH, 2035 - Continued
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

4. Property, Plant and Equipment
¥ in Thousands

As at As at
F1st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Dffice equipment

Cost or Desmed cost

Balance at Beginning of the year 388.16 22816
Additiong N

Dilsposal : -
Balance at End of the year 383.16 35816

Accumulated depreciation and impalrment
Balance at Beginning of the year 388.16 JER 16
Eliminated on disposals of assets = .

Depreciation expenss - -
Balance at End of the year 3a88.16 IR 16

[Carrying Amount
Balance at Beginning of the year o z
Addition - £
Disposal =
Depreclation expense . -
Balance at End of the year - -
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 - Continued

5. Investment property
¥ Im Thausands

s st As gt
31st March, 2025 | 31st Morch, 2024
Completed investment properties - -
Total £ -
As at AL gt
SEELINC NS Foue 315t March, 2025 | 315t March, 2024
Balance at bﬂ_lnn'mg of the year 13,921.53 13,821 53
additions pt ¥
Disposals -
Other transfars . =
Balance at end of the year 13,921.53 13,821,583
Az at Az at
Accumulated dopreclation and impairment 315t March, 2025 St March, 2024
Balance at heglnnlng of the year 13,921.53 13,921 53
[arigillafatilt -
Cisposais : =
Other transfers -
|Balance at end of tha year 13,921.53 13,921.53

5.1 Fair value measurement of the Company’s investment properties

The falr value of the Company’s investrment properties a5 at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024
have baen arrived at on the basis of 3 valuation carried out &% on the respective dates by V.5 Modi @,
independent valuers not related to the Company. V.5, Modi (s registered with the authorlty which
governs the valuers In India, and they have appropriste gualifications and recent exparience in the
valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The falr value was determined based on the market
tomparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties as well a5 other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. in estimating the fair value of the propertias, the
highest and best use of the properties ks their eurrent use. Thus, the significant unobsarvable inputs
are recent transaction price, taking inte sccount the dilferences In lacation, and individua! factors,
such as frontage and size, between the comparabdes and the propertics, Details of the Company's
investment properties and information aboul the fair value hierarchy a< at 31st Mareh, 2025 and
315t March, 2024 are a3 follows:

¥ in Thousands

As at 315t March, 2025
Particulars Lewal 3
Miw Dwalhi - Bullding 93, 870,00
Karnataka - Building 21,000.00
Maharashira - Building 1,66,818.80
Tatad 2. 81,688.80

As at31st March, 2024

Particulars Lavel 2

Mew Dealhi - Buslding 01, 35000
Karnataka - Bullding 15.000.00
Maharashtra - Building 1,59 11200
Total - Pl g 2 69.462.00
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FENANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

B Otber investimarity
Deher Non Cerenl invesimems
Ein Thousands
Ay ot 301 March, D025 Ay ardiat daeeh, M8
Particulars Oy Ao E Amgunt
Ungpogmd 1l fu
in investments in Carme| Propertio Pt. Lt hald t Costisines # i bwards
Imeesiment propety ralir Mote 1 belos) -
(a) Equity sharei of F 10 eacs 1,135 .00 250 LE2s.on Aan
ib} Imedemable deberduim olT 100 sk ;08800 HEAS 3,083 eag
Tatal (% 4,740 LT 4 236 o145
L] Investments in Fortes Technsiys Umited gt cont
ia} 1R Dotanally Redesmabi rampubory Coseerigle, Hon Cumulsitve Prefermnce
Fhares of @ 20 pach in Farbe Technasys Lnted dhefer ot 2| 20,00, 0K ] 00,00 VX, (LN 20000
Tatal =} o, [ D600 DGO L O G h).og
— g
TOTAL AGGREGATE UNGRIOTED BVEI TWMENTS [ B 214,00 SOLAS 200823400 98
TOTAL INVTSTHENTS 20104, 114,001 5545  AOd I SELAE
h-=ﬂmh—um#hﬁnmhwh-dmrq L 5 B
TOTAL INVESTRMENTS CARAYING WALLIE (IS H Am1.4% 39145
— —— T

Aggregaie murkest vales =i goeead inveslmania E -

Mone o
L Carmel progarty s a residential st ot Flurmbal, markel wilum a3t 31003095 Is7 2108 #5000 ani as s TR0 P 20,5092 500" a5 per valuatins raport s try
VEModl Asinrinter, Chartered Evginess, fovt Aaniosd Waers, Mumbp,

L I respeet of Forbes l'tuhurp'.lq.lrn:llFrLI.I:l-eHl:imultmm-.-Lm-Tnuuml, Mushai Beach (KC1T), vide o5 aeder dated Saich A8, 2075, hak simibied thi patition fied
Oy FIL, wmder Sectian 50 nf g Wsodvency and Banknspicy Code, 104 |18 Credee”}, red wih this Imobsency and Bambruptry (A liation 1o ddjudicasion Auilhiiity) Rader,
BOLE A% @ resul, the Corporate Inacivenoy B salution Procags [Cive hea BEed wilired, the kibaim Regobsgion Profeeyieesal [IRF) has Seen apscirs) witi ilfoct from 1he

tlitw of the Dnde. (onpageantly, the mansgeimland povars of the Baard of Orectors ol FiL am ngws mugpanded and will e mearcized by the IRP for tha dursiion of e
Cisg,

8.3 Category-whe other Investmants — 35 gar ind A3 109 classfeation

F in Thousamsds
LA A o
Partieuilars ALst March, 2025 Tiar March, 2004
‘F-h.nwumut-r—l At arnislned cond
Eqjufty nsirementy A A=)
Preference idtrumenis . ;
DiBantures L] IBRRS
ks Total 1A% /A5
Terial EiLas ELE
L —
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARDCH, 20725 - Continued

7. Trado recelvabiles
T in Thiusands

fis ak Azt
Partlculars 315t March, 202% 315 Mosch, 3024
- Unsacured, tomidened gond .
Tetal -
B Loans
¥ in Thousands
fis 4% As of
Particulars Aist March, 2025 315t Movch, 2024
Laans {Inter-Corporate Deposit]
= Unsecured, cosskdened good
Daubthd [Refer note T of Schedale G “Other Insvpstment” | 15, 300000 15, 0000
Less - Allowancs for bad and doubthd loant 15,300,000 1520000
Total = .
9, Dther nancial agssts
9A  Other financial assets - Man current
¢ in Thousands
Az al As af
Particulars 3058 Masich, 2038 2far March, 2024
al Security deposits
- Uresetured, considerad gaod 15,157,585 1515755
- Dosgatful 271.43 271.48
Less 1 Afiowance 1or bad and doubaful Boass ITLAR I71,48
suib total [a) 15,157.55 T5. 257 55
b) Balance held & Deposits with Banks with
remaining maturity period of wone thar 12 manths T30.70 -
Tatal fa ) 15,888.34 15.157.55
S8,  Other finandial assets - Current
T in Thousands
A5 ar As or
Particulass 315t March, 2035 31s5f Mowrch, 2004
a)  Accruals:
= Anterest Arcreed an Deposits with Banks
- Intgrest nrorued on Lear ghesn - Doukful (Refer pete 2 of Schodude 6
“Othar lnvestment”) 2403069 2404.68
Less - Allowanoe far dewbibful interey. 2Aaidgn 240365
Tatal {a j . =
|'::;?n .'"l F [T [
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 15T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

10, Cash and cash eguivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents intkide cagh oo hand and In banks. net of
outstanding bark overdrafs. Cash and cash aguivslents 31 the end of the reparting period a5 shawn in the statemant af
cash Mows can ba retanciled fo the ralated tems in the balance sheet s follows:

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

10wk,  Balances with Banks

al  In curront acteunts

b} Deposits stoounts (with original matury upio 3 months|
Cazh ard cach eguealents as per balance shael

108, Other Bank balances
2} In deposit accounds with criginal maturity of more thas 3 months but less
than 12 ks

11. Other assets - Current

4)  Advences for sugply of goods and semvioes
= Uniscured, considered goed
Prepaid mpseerses
Balances with statutory / goverament authorites
Wekiigred, considered gaod
Toxal

oo
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¥ in Thousands
Az

A5 Mavch, W3a

1,457.74 105139
15, 902.07 .
17 45 &) 2.0%3.29
E 40656 Io421.08

g.msf' 1047108

P in Thousands
A at Ax ot
31st March, 2025 3ist M;_m,m
53
263,81 24201
263.91 751 77




VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 115T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

1. Equity Share Capinsl

P in Thousands
A G A ot
F'I_ﬂ_;__H.-l 15t Maeich, TH82% st Mareh, Mg
Erpulty whares of § 100 made 5,858.50 554 40
Totad E.ﬂ] 5038 50
——T L e
Authorsed Share capltal
100,000 Sl pasd eipsily shareof ¥ 100 sach L0, 00401341 Lo 1 (K
|ssued o delser bed CApItE COMEF tenc
50,385 Nully paid squity shares ol T L0 wach Em L]
5 fan s T

121 Fully pad Bhiiity shares
Ml o Sharer Share capital

Particelars I tazesand ¥ = Thousands
Balance aL 18 Aprd, 221 8019 3,50
Flmaements . .
Bafasce at ¥Let March, 2004 5035 s B
FMimsemenis -
Hiaimnre wt 1137 Mirch, 2008 S0LIEB L DR

Fully pasiel wqutry shares, which hine s par valus o € 402, carry e vote per shars med carmy 3 right 20 Suidend,

1r2 MJMWhmMme.lhmw-m,mwm:mm"

Vully paid ordinary shares
A at Az of
Farticulan: EE“EEU‘IE FIRF Mzerfi, 2024
balanci at the beginning of the paring 5033 5.8
Thir halding company z
Tl SIS ]
N ——

113 mﬂihﬂﬂhﬂ’brmmmH|mnﬂm

s 1 3151 March, P05 As gi 3l Aarch, J024
NMumber of shanes % holding mcha | Mumiber of hares % holding i rhe
Faicukan hekd clais of ghares i) ciss of Bhaves
Eully paii sguity shares
Forbes B Corrgany Limited 5038 100,50 5339 T o
Total S0 IWE_ 5339 A00.07
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2025 - Continusd

10, Dthar eguity
¥ in Thousands
AL an AL 07
Particularg 1wt Mgarch, 3005 Fzﬂ% x4
) GeEneral Faiire TD0A pECIEN o)
[=]] fietained earmings 2801738 IL55T.33
¢l Capital redamption reEars 25005 R
Tekal A5EAEA] ALTER 4
¥ i Thousamss
&5 an Al ot
Particulars Nlsi kLY Jlat March, 2024
13.1 Ganeral reserse (Relar Noge 1 |
Balance at bagianing of (ha ymer TR TR A
Flrewmeniy -
Balance ot end of The year 7,004 B F.0d d)
1.2 Retained danmings
Babsece a2 bignning of pear 15553 53 Eoaegs
Frofitf[Lina| attrbunatie b sanery of the Compus 18, réa oy [P LR
Balined i end of Hhe peas PR T3 850 ar
15,5 Copltal redemption reseryp
Balance al baginnnp of the yen 96140 2 0EL 50
M getmenta - i
Bafastes it end of the vear 2 88150 FrET]
Takal

I TEL A1 _E-\EEI

Wate 11 Tha gimeral mseove i used bom tme to sme to el peolts from Fitdingd mamings o7 apphopeiation punpoces. Ac T ansrl

ey i3 i by a Mﬂummurmhnummmimm.numﬂmmnmummm
The genoral resare well ot be ool Rad subssnuestiy fo preht o o,
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

14, Orther finandial kabdlithes

P in Thousamds
i @t A5 ot
Particulars 3st March, 2035 31st March, 2024
al  (xhers -
il SoOmicy depasits 5, 255.59 5. 455 53
Tota sa5% 539555

15. Deferred tax balances

The: Fallowing is the anatysis of defarred tax setslanities) prosested in the balance sheet:

F in Thousands

A B Ag gt
Particulars 31st March, 2025  3lst Muoroh, 2024
Dielesred Eaw assets x =
Dirferrnid tae Rakilitee 118 3 [v]
Het {110} {11
Current Year [ 2024-25) P in Thousands
Partiulass Opening halance Ltel Llosing balance
Deeferned tan [Rabilties) fasseds in relation oo
al  Property, plast and equipment j1.90) - {110}
Tatal [A) ... L.10] - {220}
Bi  Cthers (MAT Crodit] ; i B
Total (8) . - .k -
Total (&) i1 {1.26)
Previows Year | 30237-24)  fn Thausands
Particulrs Openiag baloaces Urillsation Closmyg bolpace
Befenred tow (Nobiliries)fasiety in relation o
ol Properdy, plantand gquiprment {1,104 {110y
Taa (&) . {134} [
b Others (ARAT Credit)
Total 8] .. . _
Taral fA+8] ... {1.10] 1.1
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continusd

16. Other currant liabllities ¥ in Thaussnds
Ag at Az gf

Particislars 3168 March, 2025 31st March, 3034

al  Adwances from Customers 371,32 40024

k Satulery remittances 214.88 13%.4%

Totad SEE M a2

17, Trate payakles

¥ in Thousands
A at As ot
Parkculars 31st March, 2025 _.ﬂ:r-t Aorch, 2074

Micra and fmall enterprises ]
Othery iBad 61 241022

Total 258061 241077

Payzhile ta Micra and small entpiprises reprosents the principad amaoant. Thers i no intavest due ! acerund § paid §
piyable dising the year,
Thet Campany ensses that all payabies arp paid wathin the agresd torme

8. Current tax assets and liabifities

¢ in Thousands
Az 8l Ax af
Particulars 31st March, 2025 305 Morch, 2024
e Ve L W
Crarrent tay assnty
Tau relurnd recevahle 10,654.4% _1_1__:).5!#. 19
lﬂ:-ﬁ.“-“ T1,084 10
Current tax Habilities
Incom tax payahile - 1,405 49
= 1, 20549
Currant Tag besets (curmant porthcen| . .
Current Tax Assets |non Current porticnf 10,654.4%5 1108410
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3L5T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

19, Hevenue from operations

Year ended

£ /o Thouwrands
Veor eraed

Farticulars 31st Mar., 2025 3ist Mar, 2004
2l rther operating rovonues
0 Rent snd smenities 21,255 51 II 54584
Total 21,255,510 T1.548.44
.
20, Other income
2] interest Incomae
F i Thowsands
Year ended Feor anded
Parliculare Fist Mar., 2025 30 Mor, 2024
1 Lesnig Tesrm Inwessbments 309 .00
ii] Band depasits B36.11 411,00
Tatal 4] =, 10 424,21
b Othar Mop-Operating Income
Credit batamcas [ fcess provision writhen back 1.939.41 55
Miiign | leneous incoms 001 AR.39
Tatal |k 1994907 3671
Total {a+ b 2.805.11 AE0.R5
21, Employos banefits expense
F in TS angds
¥ear endad Year ended
Particulars i.il P, 2025 Jdst Mgy, Nix4
Iy Salarses ard Wages L, 158.00 1,188 00
i) 52af WeHare Exponacs 0xE 022
Total 1,188.21 i.184.23
22, Finance costs
£ i Thousands
Year ended ¥eor enged
Farticulars 31t Mar., 2028 33t Mar, 2074
{3l Berlarinl SRS i-
i eieress paperises an lease Babilithes 1257 254
i} Cathae inkerest expense AEET .
Tetal [2] 90,38 254
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued
23. Dapreciation and amartisation expense

Particufary

iy Thousands
Year ended Year endled

3ist Mar., 2028 315t Mar,, 2024

i Depreciation of Property Prant & Eguipment =
i} Amarimakion of ROU Astats- Lease 5113 ShE
Total f== 52.39 5239
9, A, Other expanses
Fin Mhousangs
Year endag Year ended
Particulars 31k Mar., 2035 31st Mar, 2024
| Poraer and Tasl ESA.10 3z
s} R and hire chargss, 15,51 @240
el Hepabng 1o -
i Buidings SR LETRE
i} CAhiary 5 .
57983 BGF, He
dl Ingizrance AL 4.1
@) Rabes and tanes (eacoding taves an incamaoj 115545 Laag e
fi Fringing & Stationery 023 msn
&l Legal and professional charges 189,30 5200
i} Trauelling and convevance %13 11,05
i Housakeeping Chargas S0 G ok
i MisteRinaous erperses 2211 a8.07
Tortal fi] 1,436,432 ER L
) To Staturtory auditar
I Forauds 4000 A0
0y Forother sardoes 5.00 5.00
&%.00 £5.00
To cost auditors for cost sudis - 2500
Tozal i) 45,00 20008
Total {4 = 1] + il | 1541 42 il:?Enf. 75
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
MOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

Z5. Income tawes relating to continulng operations

25.1 ncoime tax recagnised in profit or loss

£ in Thaousands
Year ended ¥ear engeg
Partioulars st Mar, 2025 e bdar. 2004
—_— e e T T, Sl
Cusrent tak
I respici of the current yoar 36600 Z15roo
Ire redpect of prior yearg 552,04 -
A.418.24 25700
Doferned tax
In fespect af the current year = -
Tedal Incams 1ax expanse recognised in the cuarnent year rekiting to continuing
Oparations llm:.u 3,1_51'.::1:!

The: incame: tax anpense for the year can be recontiled 1o the accounting profit o follows:
Fin Thowsangs

Year ended Ve ended
Fartiou|ars st Mar,, 2025 _Fst Mor., 2024
Frafit before tax from cont@wing cperatians S LAY B | e AR
Incame e expanse calodated @ 25.16B% (M23-2074; 26%) 4.970.04 Lawz.02
Effect of incomne that 1 exempl fiam taxation L :
iffect of expense that & non dedwsiiide in datermining taxable prafit 1m 11.57)
Effncy of Lan Incentives and CerCELsinn (1.903.43) PG 23
Effesct of busings ouses noc siowed to b set off I&9.09 S
mmﬂeﬁaﬂmmmmmﬂndurwm 5514 -
Bounding off of tax provision 025 G
Adju it mens redogrised in The curment wias In relation to tho current tax of prios
VeSS
Incoamne bax expenss recognised in prafit or o irebating 1o continuing operatiang)
4,018.24 Z157.00

Thir ta= rage used bor the 20242005 and H0XF-I024 recancifatians shous & tha Fesfparaie s rate of 25 156% payable by corporate
enbiies in india an takable prafits undee e indisn T Ly,
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

25, Contingent labilities

P In Thousands
Az at As gl
Farticulars 355t March, 2025 A5t Mavch, 2024
Incarme Tax Matters B0, 5 B8
7. Earnings per share

Year ended ¥eEar ended
Partheailars Flst Mar., 2025 ITst War, 2024

¥ pershare & pershore
Basic eamings per share F12.89 I08.&F
Ciluted sarmvg per shn k¥ ] 108 57 |

I7.1. Bailc Enrmings pev shars

The earnings and welghted average number of pquity shaves wsed in the talculation of hask eamings por shaee are 25 follows,

Year anded ¥eor erded
Particulass 315t Mar., 2035 A6t Mar, 2024 |
Profiyf|Loss) for e year atiributable to owners of the Compary [&) (T in
thousand) 15, 764,97 545558
Weightoad aversge numibar gl egaity shares for the purposes of bazic
parnings per share {8 |Nember af shaies] B39 L ]
L_nl.:zarmr!g per shars (AJB] ¥ 31289 10887

T, Diluted sarmirgy. per thare

Thene 1S 0o dilution of eouty thares.
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2025 - Cantinued

TR

IB.1,

1#.& Categories of Mesrcisd instruments

IE3 Findiclesl rk marapemest olijsctie:

Financual inatrumants

Capilal maragement

The Coffgurny sacages s capial o emore that 0wl be abls bo coniires a1
optimitation of the debr and egquity balpce

The capitél itructure of B cofgirs mainly conshts o eauity of the Company [iampreing isseed capipl,
redemption reserse as desalied n Mones 13 12 13)

HHing roncern whie masmiing e retern 1o sabkabolders through 1he

peneral resarens, retained eamings and capial

Thes eampany |5 not depidd k2 rency risk a8 thers sre no fones tramactions snd 850 o exposune 10 frisrss FaE fisks vines no war labibe rate imsuments

s an TR0 035 Peere ang N Borrgmingy Bedd cerrenily Company does not intsnd fo borms and thire b no line of creda. with bk, hence A ganing ratio

® in Thousands
Az an A ar
Farticulars JLst March, 2025 ALt Mareh, 2024
Fitancial anvets
P i) ot Bmortied Cost
Cavh ana hank halancey LT 40481 2058y
Trade Redidvalds - -
Bank kuilancem B A, ARAELDR
Dothir Fnarciad hsoers 15,089,314 25,157 55
vesiments in Equily Imsruments 250 Fi
nyariments bn Debeniures HEH g oy
42615 2T P ET
Finamciy| babilitees e —
Beprared at Amarghed Cost
Tracn and Other payables FEEE R T ]
Cher Firancal Liabi#ites 525559 5 18c4n
B 103,30 LEAS AT

The Compaw monibors s sanafes tha Snencisl risks 10 the spertions of the Comgasy These risks include eredit rish and Fubseg rid.

F19 Crod rick masagement

Baved on the Comparry s meonbonng of customes credi risk, fhe com

Eart are not o due o part due BT 0ot mond Bhan one pEar

Ligpaicirty rizk masagement

Liguishey Misk Managemisa implie mantenince of sulfickn cesh and bani balance i mest obligatans
rramtainng adequits Ture, by conoinupusly

pany heligpss that no impakment aflowancs i nECERary in ressct of trede recesag biley

when due. The Company marages lgsidity rsk by
manltenng forscat and actusl cash flows @l by matching the matwily probles of Bnancisl msess and

Hphilirasg,
¥ ir Thoussnds
Pelabasr v & Fimancia| Liabd i es h!mlmﬂ
l.|-|;|'|'|:l_'ﬁI 1 3 3 yawry I;h_-'_iruﬂ B yean & abovi
Tricle Paryulsles FELTA . H 5
Other Flrgncial Lishiities m__ﬂ_@ & 2, 055,75 LAT5.EA
ERL N - EEE‘E.'.I'!- Ls_I’EI‘!-.Bl
P Tioukany
Maturties of Fnaris’ Liabiities 325t Movch, 2024
_ e I peiey 110 §emnn E 5 prait & abvve
Trade Popofilas AT 02 149 =
Crher Financhat LialiGelen - 255575 4 3759 84
LR T L6075 Fdn STE9. 84
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continued

29, Related Party Disclosures
Cisrrand Year

tal Name of the Related Parties and Descripton of Relatianship:

Jﬂumﬂnﬂuﬁmﬁllp Mame of Engity Ebbiwviation wsed
[Ltirnata Helding Cormpuamy Shapoar]l Pallonjl and Campany Private Limied SPECHL

Hiddling Company Forbes & Company Limded F&LL

Felloray Subsidiaries Forbes Technasys Limited iL.Ip'I::}.Id-.D.ELEI.‘.IESHﬂ.n'I‘-pr Qther invastment Nage 2| FTL

(whara e are trarmactions| Campbedl Froperties & Hospitality Services Lid, CREHSL

Frowious Yeor

{l Mame of the Reloted Baorties and Desrription of Heladionship:

Nature of Relationship Mome of Eality Abbrevietion ured 1
Uitmiate Holddag Company Shopeoi Pallonjl end Company Privite Limited SPRCPL

Halding Company Farbes & Compony Limined FlCL

Fedlawr Subralaioviey Forbes Techosys Limited FrL

fwihere thesg are transoctians | Compbell Properties & Hospitaiity Services Lid, CPEHS
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VOLKART FLEMING SHIPPING & SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025 - Continuad
30 Leases

{3} Uperating Lsase: Company e lessor
fil  The Compeaiy bas geetn cortain offics / iesidentis RIMMRY O 00 erating s Bave, the detaiy of which se a5

Yol ivare:
P |n Thgusands
Ag A5 ol
ass of Asuet 3064 March, 2025 | 3ot bachk Jrizg
Gruss carneng Amount 13921 53 11527053
Accurnulated Depeisatinn 134971.53 13922 8Y
[Bepreciaton for the wear . -

(141} ':'D'E'Hﬁﬂﬂ Lema; Company as e

recogased bre a5 ol

F in Theousamds
B af Asar

PFarticulars A1t March, HIFS I Aovch, 2 -
Cost or Deemed Cost

Balanee i on 01095024 @104, 2023 ELRET 15738
Adiditioms wo Rights o8-use of assers during the year {Commerncia

15718
N 1o Hights-ntuse of mes duning the pear [Commercial
rriyes| 157.18 -

llhﬂ!l-hrﬂl..lT:I-.H.!EFH._H.lDﬂ I5F.18 ISTI8
|\ Arcuituleted Opgegcfation

Badance 35 ga 01.04.2004 § 04043000 157.18 . 78
Aepreation of right ofusie of assats dusing the year 54 5239
Cidertion to right-cf-eee of asséns dy e yRar 157.1E -
Nalenod i ot 31032005 [/ §1.00.2024 5250 5718

Amount ===
Nw e ak 11.03 2035 .HE.HH 104.78

jIntarust Bepenses funwinding of dissscnt] on Mase Eabiitic 11,52 L
Toasl Cach ouiflows in Pisigict ot lsases finduthing shart tsrm

e 11 B0 tall o

feb Lease Lisbilay remognised

F In Thousands
Hs @t As ar
Partfeulars 315t March, 025 | Fist March J0ds
Mon Currant Lease Ladilty 5146 -
Lurrent Liase Lish(iry .28 G

¥l Micro, Small and Maodium Entirprtues

O e basis of responses fecsiverd AEENET eoquines et by me Coebigarrny, thord [k an emount af By 1) utstindieg in
respecT &f biom anaf S bl Enterpaise cowernd wesfiar e Micre, Srnall snd Mediam Ererprisis Davelopmint Ack, 2006 a5 &=
th Batance Shist date, The Cospany ks not defasited i fivement of dess 1o e st taring this year

32, Segment reponing
The Cowmpany i ondy engaged & Rl Eviace busness snd thers u'e no repoetabie segments av per N0 AS 100 Operaling
Sapments.

33. Previous periods Rpures hase been regrouped whersver npcemarny

A5 per our repadt of swen dako 3
Far b4 § K & & Ca, SUDHIR WAKLIRE
Chimtesed Aocowslanfs

Firms Fomg Noc- 117035 ';‘1-3.\;"'"‘-?{., b,
R 0 WRNAL JAGAWAT ™ Disectars
:irll s 1 II L
E: T1I o |_'|_.'|_ ! :"-|| @—v@
LA 7

Makbhwari %" Acets
ner R
idershership No.: 04A555

Muvalun, TIek Apwl 2025




